
Date Published:18 January 2021     

Joint Meeting: Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 26 January 2021 at 10.00 am

A remote access meeting held via Webex

AGENDA

1  INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES 

Chairman of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee, 
Cllr Stephen Hirst, and Chairman of the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, Cllr Brian Robinson, to welcome everyone to the committee 
and explain the purpose of the meeting. 

To note any apologies

Cllr Stephen 
Hirst 

Cllr Brian 
Robinson

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To declare any pecuniary or personal interests relating to specific matters 
on the agenda.

Please see the information section at the end of the agenda

Cllr Stephen 
Hirst

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 16)

To confirm the minutes of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee meeting on 10 November 2020 (Members of the Adult Social 
Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee only)

Cllr Stephen 
Hirst

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  RESPONSE TO COVID-19 (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND PUBLIC 
HEALTH) (Pages 17 - 54)

An update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on the response to the COVID-
19 Emergency. A Covid-19 intelligence summary update will be circulated 
prior to the meeting to provide members with the latest information.

Sarah Scott



    

5  RESPONSE TO COVID-19: NHS GLOUCESTERSHIRE CLINICAL 
COMMISSIONING GROUP (GCCG) 

A verbal update from the NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (GCCG)

NHS GCCG

6  RESPONSE TO COVID-19: GLOUCESTERSHIRE HEALTH AND 
CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST (GHCFT) 

An update from the Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation 
Trust

GHC NHS FT

INFORMATION ITEMS

7  PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT (Pages 55 - 58)

An update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health on matters relating to Public Health

Sarah Scott

8  ADULT SOCIAL CARE REPORT (Pages 59 - 62)

An update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health on matters relating to Adult Social Care

Sarah Scott

9  CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT (Pages 63 - 70)

An update on matters relating to the delivery of services within the Chief 
Fire Officer (Gloucestershire) portfolio of services, (comprising; 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service, Trading Standards, Civil 
Protection and Coroners Services)

Wayne Bowcock

10  ROAD SAFETY CABINET PANEL (Pages 71 - 134)

In response to Motion 843: Enabling Road Safety Measures, (considered 
by full council in September 2029) and the establishment of a Cabinet 
Panel by the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee in 
October 2019, Cllr Dave Norman MBE: Cabinet Member for Public 
Protection, Parking and Libraries, to present the outcome report, 
(including recommendations), from the Road Safety Cabinet Panel 
Review. 

The report to be noted and any comments to form part of the Cabinet 
discussion at the Cabinet meeting on 24 March 2021. The report will be 
taken as read at the meeting. 

Cllr David 
Norman MBE

11  WORK PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS 

To suggest items for consideration at future meetings, (Adult Social Care 
and Communities Scrutiny Committee and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee).

Jo Moore



    

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee Membership –  Cllr Phil Awford, 
Cllr Iain Dobie (Vice-Chair), Cllr Andrew Gravells MBE, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Tim Harman, 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair), Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Brian Robinson and 
Cllr Steve Robinson 

Health Overview Scrutiny Committee Membership – Cllr Brian Robinson (Chair), Cllr Paul 
Hodgkinson (Vice-Chair), Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr 
Stephen Hirst, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Suzanne Williams

Co-opted Members - Cllr Martin Horwood, Cllr Dilys Neill, Cllr Helen Molyneux, Cllr Collette 
Finnegan, Cllr Steve Lydon and Cllr Jill Smith

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe, prior to the start of the meeting Tel:01452 
328506/e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk).

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Jo Moore, Democratic Services Senior Adviser 
:01452 324196/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk

 

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
held on Tuesday 10 November 2020

PRESENT: 

Cllr Phil Awford
Cllr Iain Dobie (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Andrew Gravells MBE
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Jeremy Hilton

Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair)
Cllr Shaun Parsons
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Steve Robinson

1. APOLOGIES 

No apologies

2. MINUTES 

In noting the minutes of 8 September 2020, members attention was drawn to point 
4.22 of the minutes and a statement from the Director of Public Health, which 
advised: - 

Guidance on care home visiting will be sent to care home providers for comment. 
Guidance will also be provided for day care centres.

Seeking clarification on the statement, particularly in light of recent events in terms 
of the advice given to care homes in Gloucestershire and details of updated 
arrangements for visiting relatives in care homes, the Chairman of the Committee 
asked for an update from the Director of Public Health.

Referring to the need to balance the safety of staff and residents at care homes 
with concerns about the mental health of residents and their families, the Director of 
Public Health confirmed that, since the last meeting, the Public Health Team had 
now reviewed its local guidance against new DHSC guidance and confirmed that 
the following message had been sent to care home staff colleagues:  

Dear Colleagues, 

As you are aware, we have been urgently looking at ways in which we can safely 
increase visiting in care homes through increased infection prevention and control 
measures and a risk assessment process that can be tailored to an individual 
resident, visitor and setting. 

Work to agree and implement these plans continues, but in light of the change to 
the national situation and associated new guidance around care home visiting 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

expected this week, we want to ensure anything we issue reflects the national 
position.

With that in mind, we are aiming to have documentation out to care home 
managers early next week, which will be supported by a workshop to go through 
the guidance and answer any questions you may have. 

In the meantime, if you need any further support or advice, please contact the 
Integrated Brokerage Team.

The Director of Public Health explained that there were no easy choices to make 
when considering the arrangements for care home visits during a pandemic, 
particularly in view of the increasing number of Covid-19 cases in Gloucestershire 
care homes in recent weeks, (at the time of the meeting, 13 care homes were 
reported as experiencing outbreaks of the virus, affecting 90 staff and 64 residents). 

Webinar training would be provided on the new guidance but ultimately, it would be 
the decision for the individual care home to implement. 

Members welcomed the decision to enable care homes to allow visits and the 
potential, (where the correct safety measures were in place), for residents to 
maintain contact with their families. 

Responding to questions, the Director of Public Health confirmed that, currently, 
there was no provision to introduce track and trace testing for family 
member/visitors to care homes. It was noted that some care homes had adopted 
their own models of testing and that safety measures based on national guidance 
had been put in place. 

It was confirmed that track and trace testing for visitors to care homes, (based on 
evidence sourced from a couple of national pilot tests underway), might be included 
in an updated version of the visitor guidance provided to care homes. Any testing 
provision would need to be driven by the DHSC, (Department of Health and Social 
Care), for which it was hoped Gloucestershire would be involved in one of the pilot 
schemes. The committee noted that track and trace testing for family members was 
no small undertaking for care home staff to administer and would need the support 
and expertise of a national testing programme.

The minutes of the meeting on 8 September 2020 were noted without further 
comment.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

4. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT - BEYOND COVID: RACE, 
HEALTH AND INEQUALITIES IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

Sarah Scott, Director of Public Health, presented the Public Health Annual Report 
2020, (including slideshow presentation). Reporting from a Covid-19 related 
perspective, the theme of the report focussed on the impact of the pandemic on the 
Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities of Gloucestershire. 

The Director of Public Health reinforced the value in focussing the report on race, 
health and inequality issues on the local population during a pandemic and taking 
this opportunity to make recommendations for improvement. 

Welcoming Althia Lyn, (Co-Chair of the Black Workers Network and Co-Author of 
the report), to the meeting, the Director of Public Health informed the committee 
that the Black Workers Network had taken a lead in the development of the 
recommendations presented by the report and instrumental in coordinating many of 
the case studies. 

The Director of Public Health also referred to the tremendous team effort that had 
gone into producing the report, including the inequalities work and contributions 
from the Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities Team based at Gloucestershire 
County Council. 

It was noted that the report had drawn heavily on research undertaken by Public 
Health England in their work to consider the impact of COVID-19 on BAME 
communities. 

The report and powerpoint presentation can be viewed on the council website here.

Acknowledging that people from BAME communities were 2.5 to 3 times more likely 
to develop Covid-19 symptoms due to the huge inequalities impacting on these 
groups, the committee noted the stark statistics presented by the report. Stressing 
the need for reliable and comprehensive data and noting the high levels of 
resilience and community support evident within some of the case studies, the 
report also identified serious inequalities and significant challenges emerging from 
the pandemic. 

Highlighting one example of the impact of the virus on the BAME community and 
the significant number of people diagnosed with diabetes and subsequently 
affected by the disease, the report reinforced the need for organisations to develop 
a cultural shift in the services and opportunities they provided to people from Black, 
Asian and Ethnic Minority groups. 

Evidence and a better understanding of the need for change by organisations who 
support BAME communities was noted as essential. Whilst there was some 
evidence of a move towards a cultural shift, improved training, increased 
awareness and better outcomes would be critical in ensuring meaningful changes 
and in supporting the health and welfare of people from BAME communities. 

Page 3

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=774&MId=9507&Ver=4


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

The development of culturally competent occupational risk assessment tools for use 
in a variety of occupational  settings had been accelerated in recent months. The 
aim of carrying out occupational risk assessments was to reduce the risk of 
exposure to COVID-19, especially for key workers working with a large cross 
section of the general public or in contact with those infected with COVID-19. 

Members were informed that the County Council had introduced a two-stage 
process to carrying out risk assessments, involving an initial check list to determine 
vulnerability, followed by a full COVID-19 risk assessment undertaken by the 
Occupational Health Team. It was noted that a number of organisations were now 
carrying out risk assessments and that it was the council’s role to provide support to 
the process. 

Outlining each of the 6 recommendations referred to in the report, 
(Recommendations Beyond Covid-19), it was confirmed that work on some of the 
recommendations had already begun and that the county’s Covid-19 recovery 
strategies had noted a reduction in inequalities.

The following recommendations were presented to the committee : -  

1. a) Require comprehensive and good quality ethnicity data collection in all 
public services (directly provided and commissioned), including at death 
registration. 

b) Put in place culturally competent training and messaging to improve 
response rates.

2. a) Provide the capacity and resource for collaborative research with BAME 
employees, organisations and community representatives to understand the 
social, cultural, structural, economic, religious, and commercial factors 
related to COVID-19.
 
b) Using the output from this research, co-produce and fund interventions to 
reduce the risk of catching COVID-19 and improve health outcomes.

3. Review commissioning procedures and practice to make sure that Equality 
Impact Assessments, BAME service user data and feedback are routinely 
used in a meaningful way to inform services. Training for commissioners 
should explicitly cover the differences in access, experience and outcomes 
for BAME residents and their responsibilities in addressing these.

4. System-wide commitment to the implementation of culturally competent 
occupational risk assessment tools, including assigning the required capacity 
and resource. Use our influence in the pubic sector to gather knowledge and 
share best practice to support the occupational health of key workers in the 
private sector.

5. Proactively work with BAME and faith community representatives to develop 
and distribute culturally competent COVID-19 prevention and health 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

improvement communication plans at an organisation level and through 
Local Resilience Forum infrastructure.

6. Ensure that COVID-19 recovery strategies actively reduce inequalities 
caused by the wider determinants of health. The Recovery Coordination 
Group should regularly review the equality implications within its remit and 
seek input from BAME staff, residents and other marginalised groups.  

Commending the report, members agreed that the pandemic had fast tracked the 
need for organisations within the county to ‘re-think’ Gloucestershire’s 
arrangements for the delivery of services to BAME communities. 

Questioning whether Gloucestershire had been slow in considering the risks and 
vulnerabilities to people from BAME communities, one member asked what 
measures could be taken to reduce the risks going forward. The Director of Public 
Health reiterated the challenges of having to respond to a new disease and 
explained that, at the onset of the pandemic, there had been no firm evidence to 
reflect the disproportionate impact the virus was having on BAME groups. This had 
only become apparent over time.

A BAME Task and Finish Group had been established quite early in the response to 
the pandemic, in May 2020. From this point forward, working with a number of 
organisations and supported by national guidance, a huge amount of work has 
been undertaken to consider specific issues.

In terms of PPE, Gloucestershire had not encountered any supply issues and was 
never in a position where it hadn’t been able to respond to sourcing/issuing 
equipment.

The Co-Chair of the Black Workers Network referred to some of the barriers to 
communication that had been identified by the Task and Finish Group, barriers now 
regarded as having accentuated the impact of the virus on BAME groups. The 
barriers identified included: fear; mistrust; language barriers; digital access and 
cultural insensitivities. 

Reflecting on the lack of confidence and mistrust in health services by people from 
BAME groups, it was reported that this had been a huge barrier when sending out 
important messages during the first phase of the pandemic. During the most recent 
phase in the response to the pandemic, efforts had been made to dispel any myths 
and barriers that existed.

One suggestion put forward in the attempt to overcome the issue of mistrust was to 
utilise BAME employees in health worker positions. It was thought this might assist 
in better understanding some of the issues that had created the feelings of mistrust. 
Another suggestion was to request the Task and Finish Group to consider the use 
of ‘Champions’ to support the communication process. 

Another area identified as a barrier to cultural change had been the limited digital 
access available to members of the BAME community. This was now accepted as a 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

huge barrier to communication. The use of leaflets and other non-digital means 
would need to be included in the transmission of messages and the cascading of 
information in the future. It was agreed elected members had a responsibility to 
support the communication process within their areas and to reach out to any hard 
to reach constituents. 

It was also agreed that the issue of inequality going forward required the necessary 
infrastructure to make the process sustainable for the future.

A member enquired whether the report would be shared with District and Borough 
Councils and another member asked what the timeline would be for the 
recommendations. The Director of Public Health confirmed that the report would be 
shared with the GCC Corporate Leadership Team, Cabinet, District Councils 
Leaders and Gloucestershire Police. It was suggested a follow up report/review of 
the recommendations should be presented to this committee after 6 months and 
this was agreed. Action by - Director of Public Health 

The report was noted.

5. GLOUCESTERSHIRE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 
2019/20 

Margaret Willcox, Executive Director of Adult Social Care, presented 
Gloucestershire’s Safeguarding Adults Board (GSAB) Annual Report 2019/20. The 
report included information on the response to Covid-19 and was taken as read at 
the meeting. 

It was noted that, in response to the unprecedented demands that had been placed 
on adult care services during the pandemic, a number of agencies had chosen to 
restructure, refocussing their resources where they were most needed. The role of 
the GSAB was to provide assurances during such changes and to fulfil its statutory 
responsibility of monitoring and evaluating the work by partner agencies to 
safeguard and promote the health and well-being of adults with care and support 
needs. 

Referring to the priorities included in the 3-year strategic plan 2018/21, (Making 
Safeguarding Personal, Prevention and Improving Safeguarding Practice and 
Board Effectiveness), it was proposed that, (as a consequence of the pandemic), a 
recommendation be made to the board to extend the duration of the strategy for a 
further year from March 2021. A new strategy would commence in March 2022. 

Responding to concerns about gaps in service provision, including a gap in service 
provision to patients with complex and multiple conditions during transition from 
Paediatrics to Adult Services, (considered a root cause of many poor patient 
experiences and expressions of safeguarding concerns), the Executive Director 
assured members that this was an area of concern under review by the Board. 

Noting concerns about the relationship between the GSAB and the Children’s 
Safeguarding Board, the Executive Director stated that, whilst it was agreed the 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

work of the two boards had drifted apart during the past 12 months, the Director of 
Children’s Services, (at the Children and Families Scrutiny Committee meeting held 
on 9 November 2020), had been tasked with aligning the work of the Children’s 
Board with the GSAB. 

Responding to another area of concern, the committee noted that a significant 
increase in the number of allegations that had been made against staff during the 
early months of 2020 had prompted a review and revision of the processes 
managers were required to follow when investigating the allegations. This area of 
work was being led by the Operational Director of People and Organisational 
Development at GCC. Members were advised that, going forward, it would be 
necessary to strike a balance in responding to the allegations in a professional 
manner, whilst at the same time, taking a compassionate and caring approach.  

The report was noted.
 

6. LONG TERM VIABILITY OF CARE HOMES AND DOMICILIARY CARE 
PROVIDERS 

Margaret Willcox, Executive Director of Adult Social Care, updated members on 
issues relating to the long term viability of care homes and domiciliary care 
providers in Gloucestershire. 

Referencing some of the issues affecting the county prior to and as a consequence 
of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the committee noted the significant impact 
of the virus on care homes, both locally and nationally. 

The decision by many families with relatives suffering from dementia to not place 
family members in care homes but preferring to care for them in their own homes, 
often with the support of domiciliary care workers had made a huge impact on the 
care industry. The most notable outcomes have been the huge capacity/bed spaces 
in care homes and the huge demand for domiciliary care workers. The committee 
noted that there were no certainties on how this imbalance might impact on the long 
term viability of care homes in the future.

Another issue considered at the meeting related to government guidance on the 
discharge of patients from hospital into care homes during the pandemic and how 
this had impacted on care homes in Gloucestershire. This issue was coupled with 
concerns about the impact of placing patients discharged from hospital into 
community hospitals in order to avoid the risk of the Covid-19 virus entering care 
homes.

Responding to concerns about the demands on domiciliary care, it was agreed 
there would be a need going forward to address the gap between the demand and 
supply of domiciliary care workers.

The issue of discharging patients from hospital into care homes and community 
hospitals was an issue under constant review. The criteria for meeting the 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

requirements of placing discharged patients in care homes remained very strict with 
many homes failing to meet the criteria nor willing to accept the risk of spreading 
the Covid-19 virus. Whilst having to adhere to national policy, Gloucestershire had 
taken the professional view of safeguarding care homes and ensuring patients with 
medical needs received the care they needed. The measures put in place included 
the discharging of patients into local community hospitals, and if required, looking to 
set up dedicated Covid-19 beds in care homes. 

In terms of the national directive, the Executive Director stated that the county 
would resist the directive to place people discharged from hospital in care homes 
for as long as possible. The committee welcomed this reassurance and requested 
that it be kept updated on any future developments. Action by Executive Director 
for Adult Social Care and Public Health

Responding to questions about the potential for people being admitted from out of 
county to receive specialist care in Gloucestershire hospitals/care facilities, it was 
agreed this was not something that was welcomed by the county. As a national 
policy, it was felt this had not been well thought out, especially in terms of mental 
health care. Members were assured the concern was being managed carefully, and 
to date, hospitals had coped admirably with admissions from out of county. 

In the meantime, the Council would continue to express its concerns about the 
impact and repercussions of receiving patients needing specialist care and services 
from out of county. As a county, Gloucestershire was an attractive and well 
provided location for the provision of specialist care services. 

In response to a question about homelessness and what actions were being taken 
during the pandemic to provide homeless people with accommodation, members 
were informed that every effort was being made to ensure homeless people were 
kept safe and cared for. The issue, in some cases, was that the people concerned 
did not wish to accept the help being offered to them. 

Members concerns about the need to address the balance of demand and supply 
of domiciliary care workers and the impact of the increasing number of families 
preferring to keep family members, (particularly those with dementia), in their own 
homes rather than in care and nursing homes were noted. The committee 
requested regular updates on such issues as part of the Adult Social Care 
Director’s Report.

The report was noted.

7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE REPORT 

Margaret Willcox, Executive Director of Adult Social Care, presented the Director of 
Adult Social Care Report. 

The report was taken as read with references to the following updates: -

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

1) Development of an Adult Social Care Technology Strategy, setting out the 
council’s technological and digital ambitions for adult social care for the next 
three years. 

2) An update on the recommissioning of the Mental Health Social Work Service 
and changes to the service proposed in 2019. These included:  

a) Revised vision and priorities for social care within integrated mental 
health services

b) Efficiencies and performance improvements in the delivery of core 
social care responsibilities

c) Improved managerial control of social care budgets and expenditure

At the outset, the Mental Health Commissioning Team was working with 
senior colleagues within the Gloucestershire Health & Care NHS Foundation 
Trust to develop plans from which to implement the changes. 

Progress was delayed, however, in the first instance by the merger of the 
2gether NHS Foundation Trust and Gloucestershire Care Services NHS 
Trust on 1 October 2019, and secondly, due to the Covid-19 pandemic and 
subsequent lockdown. 

It was noted that, work on the project had now formally restarted, with the 
first meeting of the Project Board post-Covid-19 held on the 29 June 2020, 
followed by monthly steering group meetings. 

The key structural changes to be delivered through this piece of work 
included:

a) Current countywide teams to be split into three services;
b) Social workers to work in integrated Community Teams; 
c) Hospital social workers based at in-patient sites;
d) A new Social Care Hub formed to manage all social care service 

elements not involved in the provision of direct treatment.

The refocusing of mental health social work resources will enable the service 
to:

a) Make improvements to the council’s personalisation approach
b) Develop a cultural change programme
c) Undertake placement reviews and review panel processes/approach
d) Create stronger pathways with Individual Placement and Support 

(IPS)  
e) Strengthen partnership relationships with key stakeholders
f) Deliver a savings target 

The Mental Health Commissioning Team continue to engage positively with 
GHC to ensure the successful delivery of the change programme through 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

existing Project Board meetings and usual contract monitoring processes. 
The report was noted.

8. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT 

Sarah Scott, Director of Public Health, presented the Director of Public Health 
Report, including an update on Covid-19 related data for Gloucestershire. It was 
noted that data was updated daily and that the information presented at the 
meeting was already retrospective. 

Concerns were relayed about the rapid increase in the number of Covid-19 cases 
across many parts of the county during recent weeks. The increase was notably 
larger in specific age groups, primarily the 19-35 age group and elderly people. 
Data continued to be analysed daily and was under constant review.

Clarifying that the number of Covid-19 related cases in Gloucestershire continued 
to be lower than in other areas of the South West, the Director of Public Health 
hoped transmission rates would begin to decline following the introduction of new 
lockdown measures. 

Welcoming the update, one member requested that future updates included i) 
comparative data on the number of admissions to hospital from care homes, (in 
comparison to the numbers recorded during the first wave of the virus), and ii) the 
number of people from care homes requiring a ventilator, (in comparison with the 
number recorded during the early stages of the pandemic). 

Another member enquired about the number of delayed cases in the treatment and 
recovery from non-covid medical conditions. Members were reassured that the 
treatment of other medical conditions was being maintained, with no significant 
impact in having to respond to the coronavirus. 

Both the Director of Public Health and the Executive Director of Adult Social Care 
reinforced that, pending the roll out of a possible vaccine prior to Christmas, it was 
still vital for everyone to remain vigilant and abide by government guidelines. The 
roll out of the vaccine was likely to take time. 

In response to a request for an update on the impact of the virus on the county’s 
suicide rates, members attention was drawn to the section of the Director’s report 
detailing the work currently underway in Gloucestershire to understand and respond 
to the impact of Covid-19 on mental health. 

The committee noted the section of the report relating to suicide rates. During the 
discussion, it was noted that, at this stage in the pandemic, no firm conclusions 
could be drawn from the data relating to suicide rates, both locally and nationally. 

In the interim, Gloucestershire’s Suicide Prevention Steering Group, Chaired by 
Public Health, had carried out surveillance exercises of suspected suicides 
occurring during the pandemic. Data from the surveillance would be used to identify 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

emerging issues or potential suicide clusters. Members noted that the data only 
considered suspected, not confirmed, cases of suicide.

The Steering Group included representation from the Coroners Office, Specialist 
Mental Health Service, Police, Mental Health Liaison (Education), and Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 

Members were informed how the Samaritans were advising local areas to take care 
when making references to suicide, specifically when making links between Covid-
19 and suicide rates. This was due to the sensitivity surrounding the issue of 
suicide and the potential to add to people’s distress; over-simplify the reasons why 
someone might be feeling suicidal, or increase the perception of the inevitably of 
suicide.

Referring to the county’s planned prevention work, it was confirmed that a refresh of 
the county’s most recent suicide prevention strategy and impending county-wide 
suicide audit, (covering deaths registered during the period 2016-2018), had been 
paused temporarily due to the coronavirus. In spite of this, other suicide prevention 
work was continuing, with a number of new initiatives in progress. 

Based on previous research, suicide rates tend to rise during periods of recession. 
Conscious that a rise in unemployment might have a bearing on mental health, the 
Public Heath Team had commissioned additional ‘remote’ mental health awareness 
and suicide prevention training for employees at Citizens Advice Bureau and other 
organisations likely to come into contact with people with financial or employment 
related issues. 

In addition, a broad range of other support measures had been introduced, 
including a letter to local businesses encouraging them to signpost staff at risk of 
redundancy to the mental health support available to them. The council continued 
to work with partners on the Suicide Prevention Steering Group to review and 
update the support information provided to individuals when in emotional distress or 
crisis.   

Members welcomed the extensive work in place and enquired if more publicity was 
appropriate. Reiterating the need for sensitivity surrounding the issue of suicide, the 
Director of Public Health confirmed that plans were in place to enhance and 
promote the mental health support available to the public, particularly during the 
widely predicted recession that was anticipated. 

Mindful of the impact of Brexit on the economy, the Director of Public Health was 
working with Cllr Tim Harman, as Cabinet Member for Public Health and 
Communities, to consider budget/funding proposals from which to invest in 
additional resources and support.

Concluding her presentation, the Director of Public Health reinforced, (on entering 
the second wave of the pandemic), that it would be essential to continue to raise 
awareness of the range of mental health support available and, wherever possible, 
encourage people to seek help when needed. Referring to the significant number of 

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

factors that can influence a person’s mental health, she advised the committee that 
the promotion of mental wellbeing, particularly at the current time, was everyone’s 
business. 

The additional services that had been commissioned were only temporary and it 
was therefore important for public health to continue working with partners to plan 
ahead and ensure the right provisions were in place to meet both need and 
demand.

The committee noted the report, including the impact of Covid-19 on mental health 
in the county and the multi-agency work underway in response. The committee was 
asked to advocate mental health and suicide prevention in their respective sectors 
and communities and this was noted. 

9. CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT 

Wayne Bowcock, Chief Fire Officer for Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue, 
summarised the key points referred to in the Chief Fire Officer update report. 

HMICFRS Inspection Review

Updating members on the HMICFRS Inspection Review, the Chief Fire Officer 
confirmed that the Fire and Rescue Service continued to work on the outcomes of 
the GFRS HMICFRS Inspection Report published in December 2019 and to 
progress the areas identified for improvement in the Improvement Plan. 

An inspection review was currently underway to i) review progress against the 
recommendations in the inspection report and ii) analyse how GFRS was 
responding to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

The inspectorate had been specifically asked to consider: - 

(a) What was working well, including any lessons learnt; 
(b) How the fire sector of GFRS was responding to the Covid-19 crisis; 
(c) How the fire service was dealing with the problems it faced; and 
(d) What changes were likely as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Data collection, document reviews, self-assessment survey and staff survey had 
been submitted for review in September 2020. Virtual inspection interviews with 
strategic leads had commenced on the day prior to the meeting, (9 November 
2020), of which the findings would be published by HMICFRS towards the end of 
the year. The inspection review had been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

The Chief Fire Officer reported good progress of the actions relating to the 118 
recommendations included in the inspection report. Only 11 recommendations 
remained outstanding, for which the council’s audit and governance evaluation 
process played an important role. 

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 13 -

An effective and more collaborative working relationship had established between 
the GFRS and the Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) Team. Regular meetings were held, 
with further ones scheduled. The audit risk team had been invited to attend all 
Improvement Board meetings and encouraged to ask questions/challenge area 
leads. This was to ensure greater transparency; add another level of quality 
assurance; and provide collaborative support to the efficiency of the improvement 
journey. 

Business Planning 

The Community Safety Annual Plan 2020 – 2021 was about to be posted on the 
GFRS StaffHub, including an overview of the projects and activities proposed for 
the next 12 months. The work was aligned with the activities on the Corporate 
Management Plan and would be consulted on from April 2021.

The Draft Statement of Assurance  2019 – 2020, (review of performance from the 
previous year), had been submitted for approval to the Strategic Leadership Team 
on 28 September 2020. Work on all Improvement Board activities was anticipated 
by the end of 2020/early 2021 and was currently on target. 

Public Safety 
GFRS support provided to SWAST, (from the crewing of ambulances by fire-
fighters), through the initial onset of the COVID-19 period had ended on 31 August 
2020. The initiative had seen 5,698 mobilisations across the south-west region, with 
Gloucestershire contributing to 748 of these mobilisations. GFRS had recently 
agreed to support the SWAST FT for a further 4 months, commencing on 1 
November 2020, as part of their plans to deal with winter pressures. 

Trading Standards 

All Trading Standard activities had been approved for re-instatement. The intention, 
however, was to continue as much inspection and investigative work as possible 
using remote methods. Physical presence at incidents and on business premises 
had been restricted to only those situations requiring urgent response or where 
information could not be gathered or assessed using remote methods. 

Service Risk Assessments would be under continuous review as officers resumed 
normal working practices and an increasing number of activities. 

The service continued to work closely with Environmental Health colleagues at 
District Councils to respond to issues of non-compliance with various Coronavirus 
Regulations. 

Investigation work had resumed some time ago, with several cases now ready to 
enter the legal process. Concerns about the backlog of court cases and the 
potential for imposing lesser penalties remained and was under constant review.

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 14 -

Conclusions

The committee commended the work of the GFRS in the response to the Covid-19 
crisis. One member suggested more publicity to promote the good work being 
carried out, particularly in terms of the mutual aid work with SWASTFT. Another 
member requested regular updates on the response to the pandemic and the 
impact of such.

It was generally agreed that there had been a cultural change in the work of GFRS 
and GCC in terms of Audit and Governance and that this had been a positive 
change. One member enquired how councillors could support the integration 
process, to which Cllr Dave Norman, Cabinet Member with responsibilities for 
public protection, advised the committee that, overall, members had been very 
supportive of the changes during the transition period. 

The report was noted with a request for a further update on the outcomes of the 
inspection review. The update to include an overview of the GFRS response to 
Covid-19, (including references to the work of the fire service during the first and 
subsequent waves of the pandemic). Action by – Chief Fire Officer 

10. PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020/21 QUARTER 2 

Margaret Willcox, (Executive Director for Adult Social Care), Sarah Scott, Director 
for Public Health) and Wayne Bowcock, Chief Fire Officer), updated the committee 
on the performance data for Quarter 2 2020/21 for each of their respective service 
areas.

Acknowledging that this particular performance report represented data reflecting 
the first significant impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the committee noted the 
increased demand for services and the subsequent pressures placed on officers to 
respond to such demands.

Members were advised that the simplistic reporting of information did not reflect the 
full extent of the pressures being placed on officers or the work required to address 
the issues arising from the pandemic. It was agreed there had been a huge cultural 
shift in the delivery in services since the beginning of the year and that this was 
likely to have a long standing impact on how services would need to be delivered in 
the future. 

Cllr Tim Harman, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Communities, stressed the 
need to engage at all levels in the fight against the virus and requested county 
councillors to urge district councillor colleagues to link their district council websites 
to the county council website in order to receive the latest information. He added 
that this would ensure local councils were kept regularly informed and updated on 
the services available to them. 

Margaret Willcox, Executive Director for Adult Social Care, reported three additional 
pieces of information that had become evident since publication of the report. The 
first piece of information related to the notable increase in demand placed on care 

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 15 -

services during the past 28 days; the second related to the increasing demand in 
the number of patient Covid-19 beds during the past week and the third related to 
the recent announcement from the Department for Health and Social Care to 
confirm a letter would be sent to all local authorities, advising them of the request to 
use care home bed space for Covid-19 patients being discharged from hospital. It 
was noted that the criteria for this use was very strict and would exempt a large 
number of care homes. 

Margaret Willcox advised the committee that this would be her last meeting as 
Executive Director for Adult Social Care prior to her retirement from the County 
Council in January 2021. Sarah Scott, Director of Public Health, would be taking up 
her new role as Executive Director for Public Health and Adult Social Care in the 
New Year.

The committee noted the report and requested regular updates on the impact of the 
pandemic on all three service areas.

11. WORK PLAN REVIEW 

The committee noted that the next meeting of the Adult Social Care and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee would be a joint committee meeting with the 
members of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The focus of the meeting 
will be to consider the county’s response to the Covid-19 emergency, with updates 
from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health, Chief Fire 
Officer and NHS professionals.  

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 13.15pm

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(Joint Meeting with Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 

RESPONSE TO COVID-19 REPORT

_________________________________________________  

This report will discuss some of the key areas of the adult social care and public 
health response to COVID-19.  The intelligence update will be circulated prior to the 
scrutiny meeting to ensure the most up to date information is shared.

COVID-19 Vaccination Update

The UK has now approved three vaccines that are key to helping protect our 
population against the impact of COVID-19 (Pfizer, AstraZeneca and Moderna).  
This brings hope for us all that there may be a return to a more normal way of life in 
the coming months.  However, the task of ensuring that millions of people rapidly get 
two doses of the vaccine cannot be underestimated.  The NHS have been tasked 
with leading on this roll out.  In Gloucestershire, the Phase 1 of the roll out will be 
targeting over 400,000 people by the end of April 2020.   This will be done by a 
combination of a hospital hub for health and social care staff, and via 10 Primary 
Care Networks across the county for the public who are eligible.  We are working 
closely with our NHS colleagues to obtain data that can be used to inform the public 
about uptake and coverage across Gloucestershire.  

The Joint Committee for Vaccination and Immunisations (JCVI) has recommended 
key priority groups for vaccination.  The vaccine is crucial to help protect the most 
vulnerable people in our society at a time where rates are high, and the pressure on 
our health and social care system is growing.   The vaccine will not necessarily stop 
people from getting COVID-19 completely, but will help to reduce the risk of serious 
complications or death in those who are most at risk (either because of their own 
health conditions, age or because they work in a very high risk setting).  The priority 
groups are set out in the table below. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



Priority Group 2 includes all frontline health and social care workers.  In line with this 
advice, the County Council and Clinical Commissioning Group are working with NHS 
partners to develop a plan to ensure that those who are eligible receive their 
vaccination as soon as possible. The list of health and social care staff who are 
eligible for the COVID-19 vaccination in this programme is:

 staff who have frequent face-to-face contact with patients (children or adult) 
and who are directly involved in patient care in either secondary or primary 
care, mental health, urgent and emergency care and community settings 

 those working in independent, voluntary and non-standard healthcare settings 
such as hospices, and community-based mental health or addiction services 

 laboratory, pathology and mortuary staff 
 those working for a sub-contracted provider of facilities services, for example: 

porters or cleaners 
 temporary, locum or ‘bank’ staff, including those working in the COVID-19 

vaccination programme, students, trainees and volunteers who are working 
with patients 

 frontline social care workers directly working with vulnerable people (children 
or adults) who need care and support irrespective of where they work or who 
they are employed by 

To ensure that we have the quickest and biggest impact on the number of people 
becoming infected with and dying from COVID-19, priority will be given to those 
frontline workers who have had regular close contact with individuals who have 
either confirmed or suspected COVID-19, as well as staff who work with those at 
higher risk of being infected or becoming seriously ill if they do.  Each service will 
also be asked to further prioritise staff based on personal vulnerability such as: age 
and ethnicity or existing health conditions, as well as considering the vulnerability of 
the service.

COVID-19 Testing Overview

Testing is one of a range of measures used to protect people from infection; it does 
not replace the need for PPE, distancing and hygiene. The top priorities for testing, 
as throughout the pandemic, are to allocate testing where it is needed most to save 
lives, protect the most vulnerable, and enable vital health and care services to 
operate safely. 

The main types of test currently being used are:

 Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR) – this test looks for evidence that the virus 
is currently in the body, by detecting the presence of viral RNA (genetic 
material) in a swab sample from the nose and throat. In the lab, a reagent is 
added, causing a ‘chain reaction’ which creates billions of copies of the 
genetic material until there is enough to be detected and analysed. The test 
only tells us if the virus is currently present in the body.

 Lateral Flow Device (LFD) – this is a simple-to-use point of care solution for 
rapid COVID-19 testing. It is a new kind of technology that enables the 

Page 18



identification and isolation of more asymptomatic people who are at high risk 
of spreading COVID-19, while minimising disruption for those whose test is 
negative.   It is a 20 to 30 minute test that detects antigens (surface proteins) 
from the SARS-CoV-2 virus through a throat and nose swab. The test kit can 
be stored at room temperature and be processed without the requirement for 
laboratory technology. Test subjects provide a sample by swabbing their nose 
and throat. The sample is then prepared and tested through a trained test site 
operator. The results are processed and results entered using a mobile app or 
online portal. Test subjects are notified of results by text and email. As follow-
up, people with positive test results are instructed to self-isolate; local health 
protection teams and NHS Test and Trace are to be notified. 

PCR (Polymerase Chain Reaction) testing has been widely available since Summer 
last year to anyone who has symptoms of Covid-19.  There is a drive through site at 
Hempsted Meadows, Gloucester and mobile sites move around other parts of the 
county (https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test).   

The PCR test is the “gold standard” for testing but the results need to be processed 
in a laboratory and so it usually takes between 24 to 72 hours for someone in the 
community to get their test result back.  This does not matter for people who have 
symptoms as they should be at home self-isolating while they wait for their test 
result.  

Lateral Flow Devices use a similar swab to collect the sample, but swabs processed 
using LFDs receive results in 30 minutes.  This is why they can have a use for 
people who do not have symptoms but who are still infectious because, even though 
they miss some people who have the virus, it can identify people who did not know 
they were infected.  If these people isolate quickly they can avoid passing the virus 
on to people.  However, these tests are not as accurate as PCR tests.  A negative 
LFD test is not a 100% guarantee that you do not have the virus: however, lateral 
flow tests tend to detect individuals in their most infectious period.  As 1 in 3 people 
may have the virus and never get symptoms, this can be a useful tool in the box to 
find extra cases of COVID-19 before the virus is passed on.  

In an evaluation of the mass community testing pilot in Liverpool, compared to PCR 
tests, these tests picked up 5 out of 10 of the cases that PCR tests detected and 
more than 7 out of 10 cases with higher viral loads (amounts of the virus in their 
nose and throat), who are likely to be the most infectious.   This means that the tests 
missed between 3 to 5 out of every ten infectious people.  

Because of this, people need to both still continue to “act like they have the virus” 
even if their test result is negative and ensure that they wash their hands, socially 
distance and wear face coverings.  Also, this means regular testing is key, as if you 
are having contacts with other people regularly, you could have caught the virus and 
start to pass it on, even if a recent test showed you are negative.  

The DHSC and NHS Test & Trace have developed guidance documents outlining 
the actions required by Local Authorities. They are also responsible for providing 
training materials for testing, supply of testing kits and PPE, digital support for 

Page 19

https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test


registration of test subject and result recording, and general support and advice. An 
online video package can be accessed that demonstrates how tests are conducted.

An expanded programme of combined PCR and LFD testing is currently being rolled 
out to specific groups nationally as shown in the table below, with some further detail 
provided later in this report on specific programmes.  

Testing Programme Status as at 14 January 2020 
NHS patient-facing staff: Increasing the testing offer 
to test high-contact staff twice a week (LFD) 

Commenced 23 November. Will extend in 
Gloucestershire to social care staff who 
regularly go to hospitals. 

Care home staff and residents: Increasing the 
frequency of testing to twice weekly for staff, and 
weekly for residents (LFD to complement existing 
weekly staff and monthly resident PCR testing at the 
discretion of the home) 

Commenced December 2020 

See update below

Care home visits: Testing will be available for up to 
two visitors per resident to be tested twice a week in 
all care homes (LFD) 

Commenced December 2020

Care home visiting professionals: 
 NHS staff already tested regularly (LFD)
 Independent professionals (eg hairdressers) via 

care home LFDs 
 LA staff visiting care homes – may use DPH 

discretionary LFDs (eg environmental health, 
social workers) 

Commenced December 2020

Extra care & supported living staff and residents: 
likely to be twice weekly testing for staff and weekly 
for residents as for care homes (PCR) 

Commenced December 2020

Registered domiciliary care staff: testing available 
weekly (PCR) 
Personal Assistants and informal carers: details 
awaited 

Commenced December 2020; higher tier 
areas were prioritised due to high demand 
Tbc

Other social care settings: testing other home care 
workers including personal assistants 

Phased introduction from late December 
2020

Hospices: weekly testing for staff (PCR) Commenced December 2020

Closed settings including prisons and asylum 
centres: weekly testing for all staff and prisoners 
(PCR) 

Phased introduction started December 
2020

Universities & Higher Education: testing to go 
home for Christmas & testing to return (LFD) 

In place. University of Gloucester and 
Hartpury ran own sites in December 2020.  
GCC supported RAU.  All universities 
making arrangements for returning students 
on key face to face courses. 

Children’s Homes: test kits made available to test 
children/staff in an outbreak where they cannot get 
kits elsewhere (PCR)

Commenced December 2020

Schools 
 Ten kits available to test in outbreaks (PCR) and 

replenished as needed

PCR in place October 2020

LFDs to be rolled out in January 2021

Page 20



 Regular testing for teachers (LFD) twice per 
week

 Testing of students on return to face to face 
teaching

 Daily testing of contacts of cases to keep them in 
school (LFD)

Secondary schools has been announced
Primary schools due to be announced

See update below

Community Testing / DPH Led Testing
 LFD testing in Tier 1 and 2 areas using a stock 

available to DPH to target specific groups
 LFD testing in communities twice per week for six 

weeks in Tier 3 and 4 areas

Streams have now merged under lockdown 
(January 2021).  Will now include testing for 
critical workers who cannot work from 
home.  Roll out requires set up of sites.

See update below

Other Testing Streams

Up to 900 national schemes including pilots in critical 
manufacturing industries, testing in workplaces of 
over 250 employees, regular testing of supermarket 
and retail staff, specific community groups.  

Ongoing.  Information is reviewed as 
available and informs implementation 
nationally. 

LFDs – Asymptomatic Testing in the Community

In December 2020, Gloucestershire County Council worked with the Royal 
Agricultural University, Cirencester College and Deer Park School to pilot the testing 
of asymptomatic students and staff using Lateral Flow Devices (LFDs). These use a 
nasal and throat swab – as in the PCR tests conducted at NHS Test & Trace sites – 
but are processed by staff on site so that results are available within 30 minutes, 
allowing the rapid identification of positive cases amongst those who would not 
otherwise have been aware that they could be spreading the virus.

During the 16 days that the Cirencester site was operational, 1,665 tests were 
carried out, with just two positive cases found. In addition, the pilot allowed GCC to 
test the implementation of the national guidance for DPH-led Lateral Flow Testing 
and to make improvements for any other test sites we may set up and guidance 
develops.

From 13 January, GCC will be operating an LFD asymptomatic testing centre at the 
Friendship Café in Gloucester City. This is aimed initially at those who live within 
walking distance of the testing centre, specifically those who cannot reasonably work 
from home during the current lockdown. Tests can be booked online from 8am-7pm 
Monday to Friday and 10am-4pm Saturday and Sunday and residents will be 
encouraged to take two tests a week. It is important to note that this is a ‘test to find’ 
programme, rather than a ‘test to release’ programme – i.e. its objective is to find 
cases that would not otherwise be found because the individual is asymptomatic, 
rather than to give assurance that an individual does not have COVID-19.

Page 21



LFDs in schools

On 18 December the Department for Education (DfE) and the Department for Health 
and Social Care (DHSC) published guidance on a programme of mass testing for 
secondary schools and further education settings in England. The approach has 
changed slightly since original publication and following the national lockdown 
announcement on Monday 4 January, where all schools were asked to implement a 
policy of face to face teaching for vulnerable children and children of critical workers 
and remote learning for all other pupils. 

There are three testing approaches that schools have been asked to implement 
which are:

 Test on Return: Rapid asymptomatic tests using Lateral Flow Devices (LFDs) 
to test as many secondary-age and further education students as possible, 
who will resume face to face education in January.  Each pupil should take 
two tests, 3 days apart.

 Routine Case Finding: testing staff for rapid identification of asymptomatic 
positive cases to reduce onward transmission within the schools and colleges.

 Daily Contact Testing: The close contacts of positive cases can be tested 
daily, to quickly find further positive cases.  If close contacts agree to be 
tested each day for 7 school days, and they test negative each time, they will 
be allowed to remain in school/college each day. Should a close contact be 
unable to test due to absence or it being a non-school day they are required 
to self-isolate for those days.

The DfE and DHSC have created guidance, delivered test kits and PPE to schools 
and have provided national webinars and training resources to support 
implementation.  Schools are all at different stages regarding whether they have 
started to deliver the testing or not and some are facing significant challenges in 
identifying the workforce required and delivering the programme in the time 
available.  GCC is supporting schools by answering the questions where possible 
and coordinating shared learning across the system.  We are doing this through 
twice weekly video conferences with heads representing each school sector, 
webinars open to all Gloucestershire schools and an FAQ guide.  We are also in the 
process of surveying schools to understand how they are progressing.

Whole Care Home Testing 

The national rollout of regular testing (retesting) for care homes in England was 
announced on 6 July.  Retesting involves care homes using PCR tests to test staff 
weekly and residents every 28 days. Since then, Lateral Flow Device (LFD) testing 
has been introduced including testing for visitors. Then on 23 December, further 
additional testing was introduced nationally, including guidance for tier 4 areas to test 
all staff daily for 7 days in a care home with at least one case of COVID-19. 

Page 22



In the last 2 months (27/11/20 – 08/01/21) in Gloucestershire: 

 223 care homes in Gloucestershire have received deliveries of test kits under 
the Whole Care home testing programme.

 A total of 75,600 test kits have been delivered to care homes across 
Gloucestershire.  

 30% of tests taken during this period by Gloucestershire residents were from 
care home test kits. 

Supplementary notes about Whole Care Home testing: 
Whole care home testing is well established and includes the following elements:

1, Residents receive
 monthly with test kits. 
 as soon as they join your care home, if they are new. 
 immediately if they develop symptoms, don’t wait for the next retesting cycle. 

2, Staff are now being asked to take LFD tests twice a week, in addition to the 
weekly PCR test they have already been receiving as part of urgent government 
action to protect those most at risk. A plan that has been accelerated in light of the 
new, more transmissible, strain of COVID-19. In the event of a positive test in a Tier 
4 care home, all staff will additionally be tested daily for 7 days.
Therefore, the staff testing cycle now includes:

 Weekly PCR and LFD testing of all staff on the same day at the same time, 
including bank and agency staff. 

 Additional mid-weekly LFD test in between PCR tests. 
 Under the national tier system, for tier 4 (since 23 December), if there is a 

positive case in the care home from either staff or residents with PCR or LFD, 
all staff should test daily for 7 days. 

If staff develop symptoms, they must not be tested in the care home. They should 
self-isolate and order a test.

3, Visitors
Visitors to care homes should be tested each time they visit with an LFD test.  This 
includes family and visiting professionals.   All visiting professionals who are not 
regularly tested through another route such as NHS staff or CQC inspectors, should 
be tested on every visit in the same manner as visitors.

Since the announcement of the national lockdown, the Stay at Home guidance, 
issued on the 4 January, states that visits to care homes can take place with 

Page 23



arrangements such as substantial screens, visiting pods, or behind windows. Close-
contact indoor visits are not allowed. No visits will be permitted in the event of an 
outbreak.
This approach seeks to achieve the right balance between the increased risk of 
infection transmission and the clear benefits to the mental and physical health of 
residents and their families that visiting enables.  The GCC guidance on visiting care 
homes has been updated to reflect this change.

Communications Work

In the lead up to Christmas, the communications team launched a county-wide 
campaign: ‘2020 might nearly be over, but COVID-19 isn’t’ to support 
Gloucestershire’s efforts to reduce cases of COVID-19.  The red, striking visuals 
were used across digital ad vans, which moved around county ‘hot spots’, lamppost 
signs in Gloucester City where cases were high (these are set to be rolled out across 
the county), across GCC’s social media channels, as well as county-wide online 
platforms; boosting the message to residents in areas of high prevalence. 

In addition, we developed a suite of social media activity for the festive 
period, including: letters to Father Christmas…showcasing people’s hopes and 
aspirations for 2021; a COVID-19 Christmas Quiz to challenge myths around the 
virus and guidance for the festive period, and a Christmas message from farmer and 
local business owner, Adam Henson. We also continued to push out video cases 
studies across our corporate social media platforms of people who have been 
affected by COVID-19; from a business owner to a vet; NHS staff and a story of 
being pregnant during the pandemic. 

With cases rising sharply in Gloucester City, we developed a radio advert for 
community radio station Gloucester FM, set to run over a five-week period. The 
narrative for this will change shortly to help to drive uptake to the new testing centre 
in Gloucester. This supported ‘on the ground activity’ in central parts of the city which 
had been ongoing in the weeks leading up to Christmas, and included: translated 
(eight languages) audio preventative messages and letters to residents encouraging 
them follow the guidance. 

Local NHS colleagues have been leading on vaccination communications, including 
case studies of those who have had the vaccine and what it means to them.  
Hospitals are raising awareness of the toll Covid -19 is having on colleagues and the 
severe health impact it is having on people through video content, which his being 
shared via media outlets.

Partners, through the multi-agency Warning and Informing Group have been sharing 
each other’s content, where appropriate, to make sure the reach is as high as 
possible.

Page 24



Key social media/digital stats by campaign:

2020 is nearly 
over, but COVID-
19 isn’t

Letters to 
Father 
Christmas 

COVID-19 
Christmas 
Quiz

Adam 
Henson

#DoitforMe So Glos 
advertorial 

Gloucestershire is 
entering Tier 3 on 
boxing day, asking 
people to make 
themselves aware 
of the rules. This 
post gained huge 
traction; reaching 
112,296 people, 
over 28,000 
engagements, 563 
shares and 29 
comments. 

The Ad Van post 
on Facebook 
reached 4,000 
people and had 
2.1k views, with 41 
shares. On Twitter 
gained 24 
retweets, 36 likes 
and 2,486 views 
and Instagram 349 
views and 31 likes. 

‘Covid isn’t over’ 
signs being put up 
in Gloucester post 
reached over 
18,000 people with 
32 comments and 
71 shares on 
Facebook.  

Instagram: 
182 views, 
14 likes

Facebook: 
9,786 
reach, 
2,830 
views, 27 
shares, 51 
likes

Twitter: 
13,095 
reach, 
2,314 
views, 18 
retweets, 
20 likes

Instagram: 
Up to 156 
unique 
accounts 
reached, 
between 75 
and 100 
participated

Instagram: 
1,570 
views, 16 
likes

Facebook: 
3,402 
reach, 
1,420 
views, 20 
shares, 14 
likes

Twitter: 
5,705 
reach, 
1,086 
views, 16 
retweets, 
23 likes

Top 
performing 
videos:

Mara, Mental 
health focus:
Instagram: 
483 views, 52 
likes
FB: 25.7k 
people 
reached, 202 
engagements, 
25 shares, 
11.7k views, 
72 comments
Twitter: 27 
retweets, 54 
likes, 3298 
views
Total views – 
5043 views

Carl, 
Firefighter
Instagram: 
257 views, 20 
likes
Facebook: 4k 
reach, 1.8k 
views, 69 
engagements
Twitter: 1,658 
views, 27 
retweets, 64 
likes

Display 
advertising: 
82,298 
impressions 
A click 
through rate 
of 0.22%  - 
four times 
the industry 
average.
 5006 
people click 
on the Hot 
List ‘ten 
ways you 
might be 
breaking the 
rules’ An 
average 
number of 
readers for a 
hot list is 
2500.
 
1244 
individual 
people 
actively 
clicked on 
the 
advertorial 
around tier 
four rules to 
read more. 
 

COVID-19 Community Engagement 

Community participation is crucial in a pandemic; the purpose of our programme is to 
engage the local community to assist in the prevention of the spread of coronavirus 
(COVID-19).  We want to ensure that the most vulnerable people in our communities 

Page 25



are protected, that people feel safe and we reduce the level of infections across 
Gloucestershire.

Our Programme aims to
 Listen and understand community perspectives and barriers to adhering to 

guidance.
 Identify and address COVID-19 related rumours and misinformation. 
 Provide reliable health information, aimed at preventing and containing 

COVID-19 in Gloucestershire communities (avoiding a one size fits all 
approach). 

 Disseminate Key COVID-19 messages within communities.
 Work with other parts of the Prevent and Contain Strategy – including COVID-

19 Protection Officers, the COVID-19 Hub and District Council partners to 
reduce confusion for the public and duplication.

 Strengthen trust between communities and public sector services.

Work to date:
 Established a COVID-19 Community Champions Network in Gloucester with 

particular focus in Barton and Tredworth.  The purpose is to disseminate clear 
and accurate information to the champions in ways that are appropriate to/for 
them. Information sessions are held to serve as a platform to address any 
misinformation within communities and to provide an opportunity for 
champions to ask questions; building trust and gaining insight about the 
issues and concerns.  Two information sessions have been held so far 
covering COVID-19 and the impact on BAME communities and Community 
Testing using lateral flow devices. To join this network contact 
Covid19CommunityChampion@gloucestershire.gov.uk.

 Created a dedicated resource for BAME communities:
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/COVID-19-information-and-
advice/information-and-resources-for-bame-communities/

 Prepared audio translations with COVID-19 advice and guidance for Muslim 
population in Guajarati, Hindi and Bengali distributed via community 
WhatsApp groups.  These have been updated several times in response to 
the changing situation.

 Developed a network of community and faith leaders to disseminate 
information and guidance and respond to queries and requests for resources.  
For example, posters translated into Guajarati for use in the Mosques and 
local shops.

 Written to all Barton and Tredworth residents from Director of Public Health, 
Ward Councillors and County Councillor about Tier 2 guidance translated into 
10 community languages.  This was sent on 14 December 2020.

 Created infographics assets to be distributed on WhatsApp groups to target 
particular populations.

Page 26

mailto:Covid19CommunityChampion@gloucestershire.gov.uk
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/covid-19-information-and-advice/information-and-resources-for-bame-communities/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/covid-19-information-and-advice/information-and-resources-for-bame-communities/


 Built on our existing relationships with key voluntary sector agencies and 
networks to build on their expertise, listen to the insight and feedback from 
their beneficiaries and to use their capacity to mobilise the wider community.  
These include Age UK Gloucestershire, Inclusion Gloucestershire and the six 
locality Know Your Patch Networks. 

www.ageukgloucestershire.org.uk  
www.inclusion-glos.org
www.knowyourpatch.org.uk

For further information please contact: 
Covid19CommunityChampion@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Financial support to social care providers during the pandemic

In April 2020 Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) and Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) took a decision to pay community and bed-based care 
providers with whom GCC contracts an additional 10% on their usual monthly 
contracted amount during the period 1st April 2020 to 31st May 2020 (two months) in 
order to provide them with short term financial support for the purpose of meeting 
additional costs due to COVID-19 and securing market capacity. It was further 
agreed to extend the terms of relief on a monthly basis for a maximum of 6 months 
when it was established that the funds were being spent as proposed. 

The cost of this measure was £5.129m and in addition providers were invited to 
identify any COVID-19 related expenditure they incurred pre-April which is estimated 
as £0.134m.  These costs were met by the emergency grant funding announced by 
the Government on the 19th March 2020 to help local authorities respond to the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

In May 2020 the Adult Social Care Infection Control Fund was established by the 
Government with the primary purpose to support adult social care providers, 
including those with whom the local authority does not have a contract, to reduce the 
rate of COVID-19 transmission and support wider workforce resilience. This funding 
has had two rounds.

In round one 75% of funding had to be passed directly to care homes, 25% was 
available for the council to spend where it was most needed. GCC received 
£7,751,543 which was paid in two equal tranches. In May the funding was distributed 
to 193 care homes (including GCC properties) which received a total of £2,735,379 
and 70 domiciliary care providers which received a total of £658,490. In July tranche 
2 was distributed to 191 homes which received a total of £2,728,540 (2 care homes 
were no longer eligible as they were not completing the national tracker as required), 
70 domiciliary care providers which received a total of £664,930 and 16 supported 

Page 27

http://www.knowyourpatch.org.uk/


living providers which received a total of £151,984. Domiciliary care and supported 
living providers were paid from the 25% funds over which the authority had 
discretion. In addition, some of the 25% funds were spent on emergency supplies of 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for care providers and on flu vaccinations for 
care staff.

In round 2 80% was to be paid directly to care homes and domiciliary care agencies 
and 20% was available for the council to spend where it was most needed. 
Gloucestershire County Council has received £6,621,410 which has been paid in two 
equal tranches in October and December. Since October 182 care homes (including 
GCC properties) have received a total of £1,839,378, 83 domiciliary care providers 
have received a total of £563,673 and 17 supported living providers have received a 
total of £45,353. Supported Living providers have been funded from the 20% flexible 
funds. 

Tranche 2 funding has recently been received by the authority and will be distributed 
early in January to care homes, domiciliary care and supported living providers in 
similar amounts. The remaining 20% flexible funding will be distributed to providers 
of day services, voluntary/charity community organisations, hospices and former 
Supporting People providers. The grant will be fully spent on infection control 
measures (as outlined in the grant determination letter) by 31 March 2021. 

Currently the Gloucestershire Care sector has received or will receive £19.6m.  This 
includes the 10% monthly payment, Infection Control Fund 1 and Infection Control 
Fund 2.  In addition, the Leader and Chief Executive has recently agreed to provide 
financial support for Care Home to purchase visiting pods to facilitate visiting.

COVID-19 Test & Trace Support grant

Local authorities are working with government to support test and trace services in 
their local communities, taking a place-based approach to containing the spread of 
COVID-19. Each local authority, led by the Director of Public Health (DPH) was 
given funding in Summer to develop a tailored outbreak management plan, working 
with District Councils, the local NHS and other stakeholders; for Gloucestershire this
was £2.2 million. 

Our outbreak management plan focusses on preventing, containing and responding 
to potential outbreaks in places such as workplaces, care homes, hospitals and 
schools, and monitoring the daily numbers of cases and other intelligence to get 
ahead of the curve.

We have allocated the funding in Gloucestershire across a range of key functions 
including:

 Prevention - Enhanced funding for Districts to employ additional 
environmental health team members to address COVID-19 compliance in 

Page 28



venues across the county; provided funding to employ additional infection 
prevention control nurses to support care homes, nominated a dedicated 
practitioner from the COVID-19 hub (see below) to work with integrated 
Brokerage supporting care homes, and employed a communications officer 
dedicated to work on the COVID-19 communications.

 Contain – as well as GCC supporting contact tracing for people that NHS test 
and trace cannot contact, GFRS are supporting “door knocking” to help those 
who aren’t responding to telephone calls to check everything is ok and help 
them access support (see below).  The districts have also used funding 
provided directly to them to employ additional Environmental Health Officers 
and COVID-19 community support officers who are available to support 
compliance in businesses and among the public.

 Respond - GCC Public Health advice and support has been enhanced 
through establishing a team of dedicated practitioners in a GCC COVID-19 
hub to answer queries, interpret guidance, liaise with districts, support 
implementation of policies and lead on the risk assessment and 
communication of outbreaks in the county.

 Monitor - Strengthened the resource and IT solutions for analysis of the 
multiple new data streams we receive to monitor the trends and outbreaks in 
the county. 

Our Test and Trace support grant currently has a budgeted spend of approximately 
£1.9 million, with further requirements on this budget likely to emerge as move 
through lockdown 3; we anticipate this will include potential need to contribute to 
more local testing models and further devolution of contact tracing from the national 
model.

Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF)

In October the Department of Health and Social Care announced new allocations for 
local authorities from the existing Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) to 
support the new three tier COVID-19 classification rules. The funding is intended to 
fund public health activities such as proactive containment and intervention 
measures. 

This grant will be administered by upper tier Local Authorities in England. It will be 
paid at a level of £1 per head of population in areas with a medium alert level (tier 1), 
£3 per head for those areas classified as high risk (tier 2) and £8 per head for those 
areas classified as very high risk (tier 3). 

On 10th November the GCC allocation was confirmed as £5.096 million following all 
areas being classified as very high risk. Since 2nd December Gloucestershire has 
been classified as tier 2. Additional funding has been made available for Local 
Authorities in Tier 2 to receive funding of £2 per head of population per 28 days in 
those restrictions. This funding will be made available until the end of this financial 
year, subject to a review in January 2021. Gloucestershire moved into tier 3 on 26th 
December and additional funds for the period 2nd December to 29th December has 
been confirmed as £1.456 million.

The COMF is intended to fund the following activities:

Page 29



 Targeted testing for hard-to-reach groups out of scope of other testing 
programmes.  Additional contact tracing. 

 Enhanced communication and marketing (e.g. towards hard-to-reach groups and 
other localised messaging). 

 Delivery of essentials for those in self-isolation. 
 Targeted interventions for specific sections of the local community and 

workplaces. Harnessing capacity within local sectors (e.g. voluntary, academic, 
commercial). 

 Extension/introduction of specialist support (e.g. behavioural science, bespoke 
comms). 

 Additional resource for compliance with, and enforcement of, restrictions and 
guidance 

 Targeted support for school/university outbreaks. 
 Community-based support for those disproportionately impacted such as the 

BAME population. 
 Support for engagement and analysis of regional areas to assess and learn from 

local initiatives. 
 Providing initial support, as needed, to vulnerable people classed as Clinically 

Extremely Vulnerable who are following tier 3 guidance. 

The headings in the table below are taken from Department for Health and Social 
Care COMF Monitoring Form with a suggested breakdown of the funding against 
each.   Cabinet will consider this allocation on 27th January 2021.  

Area/ Activity Budget
£000s

Testing 1,000
Tracing 750
Compliance measures 663
Communication and marketing  200
Support for the clinically extremely vulnerable 250
Support for wider vulnerable groups, including rough sleepers 800
Support for those self isolating 250
Targeted intervention for specific cohorts within the community  750
Specialist support i.e. behavioural science 255
Utilisation of local sectors (Academic, volunteers etc.) 250
Support for educational outbreaks 250
Other: PPE 100
Unallocated additional funds 1,034
Total 6,552

Contact Tracing 

Public Health England is encouraging local authorities to provide local contact 
tracing services to enhance the national test and trace service. The local services 

Page 30



are passed cases that the national team have not been able to contact either through 
completion of an online questionnaire (open for 8 hours) and then through the 
national team attempting to call the case for a period of 24 hours.

Gloucestershire County Council piloted a local contact tracing service on Thursday 
19 November, focussing only on cases within Gloucester postcodes, due to the 
prevalence of cases. The service expanded to include Cheltenham postcodes from 7 

December 2020 and all postcodes from 4 January 2021. 

The service initially consisted of the Health Protection Team making calls to 
confirmed cases that the national team had not been able to contact. This involved 
some investigative work to identify whether the case was in hospital, a care home or 
in some cases, deceased. The calls are now being made from the Customer Contact 
Centre.  A data sharing agreement was put in place with Gloucester City Council to 
enable checking for any additional contact details that may enable contact with the 
case. Work is continuing to establish agreements and the process for cross checking 
contact details with all of the district councils.

For those cases that the local team are not able to make contact with over the 
phone, a door knocking service is being led by Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service (GRFS). GFRS are visiting the case household and encouraging the case to 
complete a contact tracing questionnaire with the team. They may also gather 
additional contact details. In some cases, they are receiving requests to stop any 
further contact.

Data capture 16.11.20 to 6.1.21. Note there was no local contact tracing between 
24.12.20 and 3.1.21.

Status Number %
Questionnaire complete 69 22
Missing details 10 4
Unable to contact 129 40
Unwilling to engage 25 7
Data quality issues re status 
to be resolved

87 27

Total 322

Deaths from COVID-19 in local NHS and GCC staff
In response to a question from a committee member - how many of their staff died of 
COVID-19 in 2020.  Sadly, one member of the GCC Adult Social Care team died 
from COVID-19 in 2020.  There have been no deaths among staff in the local NHS 
organisations.

Page 31



Brokerage
Between the 28/09/2020 and the 04/01/21 there were 381 deliveries totalling 1,203,771 items of PPE to Adult Social Care 
commissioned providers the tables below demonstrate the burn rate of PPE based on the orders delivered though may not indicate 
a true burn rate for providers  as the rates of COVID-19 accelerated, as providers use the PPE cell when they are unable to access 
adequate supplies from the national portal or thorough usual supply channels.

Average Weekly 
Burn Rate

WC 
28/09

WC 
05/10

WC 
12/10

WC 
19/10

WC 
26/10

WC 
02/11

WC 
09/11

WC 
16/11

WC 
23/11

WC 
30/11

WC 
07/12

WC 
14/12

WC 
21/12

WC 
28/12

WC 
04/01

Gloves S vinyl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gloves M vinyl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gloves L vinyl 900 0 350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gloves XL vinyl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gloves S Nitrile 1400 3650 2700 1350 4600 5200 2950 12700 5700 8150 6750 10650 6500 13000 12700
Gloves M Nitrile 4200 13600 11100 11000 22650 15600 12950 33750 16000 21150 30750 37450 36000 33400 21800
Gloves L Nitrile 4300 10450 8200 11350 11900 11450 9950 31350 16900 17450 28750 31350 20500 21100 39750

Gloves XL Nitrile 3500 4765 2050 5540 5060 5700 5000 11700 7850 8350 9800 13000 12700 6700 13100
IIR Mask 6150 6025 7000 9000 9275 3175 6475 18850 11800 16425 15425 26775 16900 18200 26325

Apron 3325 8975 5400 5700 9750 10200 3525 12650 8900 12450 10600 12350 11000 17400 13700

P
age 32



W
C 

28
/0

9
W

C 
05

/1
0

W
C 

12
/1

0
W

C 
19

/1
0

W
C 

26
/1

0
W

C 
02

/1
1

W
C 

09
/1

1
W

C 
16

/1
1

W
C 

23
/1

1
W

C 
30

/1
1

W
C 

07
/1

2
W

C 
14

/1
2

W
C 

21
/1

2
W

C 
28

/1
2

W
C 

04
/0

1

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

Gloves S vinyl
Gloves M vinyl
Gloves L vinyl
Gloves XL vinyl
Gloves S Nitrile
Gloves M Nitrile
Gloves L Nitrile
Gloves XL Nitrile
IIR Mask
Apron

Guidance
During the last three months to the end of the calendar year Brokerage have 
distributed 76 new pieces of guidance and information and have responded to the 
questions and queries from the sector on these.

Outbreaks 
We have responded to 188 notifications of outbreaks and have followed through with 
support calls on notification and then at day 4 and 14.

We have revised and tightened the response times for initial and follow up calls 
following a mass care home evacuation on 23rd December 2020 following a large 
scale outbreak. We have also tightened the process working more closely with 
Healthprotection colleagues in initial information gathering and decision making in 
relation to undertaking a multi-agency review meeting with the provider.

We continue to participate in IPC reviews of care home and are supported in this by 
the newly appointed IPC Team.

Care Home Visiting Pods

The Leader asked us to explore how we could support the safe visits to Care Homes 
when the advice to stop visits was high profile.   Expressions of Interest was sought, 
by letter, on the 17th November.  From the responses, and understanding some of 
the innovative ways Care Homes were individually responding to ensuring that safe 
visits could continue, it was agreed that £3k would be offered to each Care Home in 
the County to support what they needed.  A further letter was sent out on the 24th 
December to request Care Home to respond if they wished to take up the offer.  To 
date we have received requests from 76  Care Home Providers which totals 118 

Page 33



Care Homes at a cost of £354k.  We will be using the Infection Control Fund 2 to 
fund this.  

“Supporting Carers beyond Covid-19”: Survey Summer 2020 

Background and context
Covid-19 has changed our lives and tested us all. The Carers UK Report ‘Caring 
Behind Closed Doors’ highlighted the increased pressure the pandemic has put on 
carers nationally. Carers, many of whom were already feeling isolated and lonely, 
found themselves even more strained with a lack of respite and a level of uncertainty 
that led many to feel anxious. 

Carers UK also estimate that Covid-19 has led to an increase of 4.5million carers 
countrywide so far. With carers providing so much support to our health and social 
care systems they are facing unprecedented pressures, we all need to identify, 
support and value carers in our county.

An online survey was circulated (August/September 2020) inviting Gloucestershire 
Carers to tell us how they felt and what could support them. The survey was 
completed by 273 carers (82% adult carers, 16% parent carers, 25% male, 75% 
female from a variety of age brackets).

Purpose of the survey 
To amplify the voices of carers in Gloucestershire and share carers stories, 
experiences and concerns with people all across the health and social care system, 
as well as the voluntary and private sectors. 
We will ensure the actions we set out in our ‘you said, we will’ plan reflect what 
carers need and want. 

Responses and Main Themes of the Survey
 Which of the following best describes how you feel about the relaxation of 

lockdown?  43.6% are going to continue to restrict their social circle and 
activities for a little longer

 What activities are you looking forward to returning to, or would be interested 
in taking up, over the next couple of months?  1) Being outdoors/spending 
time in nature/gardening 2) Social activities with friends and family 3) 
Exercise

 What might stop you from doing these things? 1) My cared for’s health 2) 
Someone to look after my cared for 3) My own health

 What support could be put in place to help you achieve these ambitions? 23% 
would like peer support groups, 18% would like a Wellbeing Carers 

Page 34



event, 16% would like a GP Co-ordinator to connect with community 
activities and 16% would like a carer bubble. 

One of the questions asked about carers’ likelihood to take up the Flu Vaccine this 
winter. We were so pleased that over 90% of carers were aware that they 
could be eligible for a free flu vaccination. Over 85% of carers are either 
‘definitely’ or will ‘maybe’ have the flu vaccination this winter.

Overarching themes
We had a final open-ended question, with most carers leaving comments. We have 
read all of the comments and understand the following:

a. Many carers’ mental health is being affected by the current situation. Many 
are feeling anxious and stressed. 

b. Many carers are very worried about Covid-19 and do not want to put 
themselves or the person they care for at risk of the virus.

c. Respite is still crucial for carers.
d. Some carers reported feeling abandoned by healthcare professionals.
e. Many carers do not know where to go for help and support.

Where we are now:
 We  have presented the results of this survey at various groups within the 

health and social care system. We are using a communication plan to ensure 
this report is shared widely across Gloucestershire. 

 We will continue to listen to carers to understand and develop support for 
carers across Gloucestershire.

 We have already started to implement some of the activities identified.

The full report can be accessed here: 
https://www.yourcircle.org.uk/Documents/Download/465/Supporting-Carers-be

Enforcement
Gloucestershire has formed a Tactical Enforcement Group which is chaired by Chief 
Inspector Richard Pitman, Gloucestershire Constabulary and has members from the 
environmental health teams in each District, Trading Standards, Public Health and 
the Police.  This group reports via the Tactical Response Group to the Health 
Protection Board.  They also take reports from the Covid-19 Community Protection 
Officers.  

On 4th January 2021 at 2000 hours, Prime Minister Boris Johnson notified the nation 
that the Covid-19 Alert Level was to be raised to ‘Level 5’ indicating the critical threat 
from the virus.  This is to be referred to as Tier 4 National Lockdown.

As a result, the Police are responding to reports of Covid-19 breaches using the key 
principles of Engage, Explain, Encourage and Enforce (the 4 ‘E’s).  Where 
individuals make choices to wilfully contravene the regulations or ignore relevant 

Page 35

https://www.yourcircle.org.uk/Documents/Download/465/Supporting-Carers-be


warnings it is the intention to ensure those individuals are subject to proportionate 
enforcement activity.  This includes:

 Lockdown breaches in private residential homes and large scale and/or 
persistent open space public breaches

 Responding to requests for support from COVID-19 Community Protection 
Officers 

  Breaches of isolation rules when returning from foreign travel
  Breaches of isolation rules when directed to isolate by track and trace.
 Gather intelligence of any planned protests, providing a clear message to 

organisers and where required directing enforcement activity. 

The Police are also providing support to Environmental health officers, local 
authorities in a proactive manner to ensure that other regulations connected to 
business premises are adhered to. This is intelligence led and will be guided by the 
Tactical Enforcement Group e.g. in relation to wearing masks on public transport or 
COVID-19 guidance breaches within the retail sector (businesses and individuals).

Gloucestershire Constabulary will regularly review activity across the 4 E’s to better 
understand if any sections of society are being disproportionally impacted by the 
approach.  Funding will be used to provide Constabulary Officers and Staff overtime 
to limit the impact of surge enforcement activity on day to day policing and the 
enforcement plan will consist of a mixture of Police Officers and Police Community 
Support Officers.   From 6th until 14th January 2021, 29 Fixed Penalty Notices have 
been given, and 69 warnings.  

COVID-19 Community Protection Officers have now been employed across the 
county.  Their activities include:

 Patrolling and checking all non-essential stores are closed 
 Patrolling Open Space areas and parks – Ensuring social distancing 
 Supporting essential businesses which are open, ensuring face covering 

and social distancing is taking place 
 Taskings from enforcement agencies 
 Patrolling schools to ensure social distancing
 Utilising two mobile units to be more responsive and visit areas further 

afield

Finally, the County’s Public Health Protection and Trading Standards teams are 
working alongside District Environmental Health teams to proactively support 
businesses to comply with COVID-19 Safe measures, ensure that businesses that 
are remaining open during lockdown are doing so under the legislation, and 
responding to complaints from the public.  This also involves liaison with the Health 
and Safety Executive where appropriate.  Activity includes providing clarity/advice on 
guidance, proactive site visits to businesses, Farmer’s markets and early years 
settings, and spot checks to ensure compliance.  A weekly report is made available 
to Health Protection Board and statistics are also reported nationally.  

Page 36



Long Term Impact of COVID-19 

Health Inequalities and COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted the longstanding health inequalities that 
already existed in our society. [Health inequalities are the ‘avoidable and unfair 
differences in people’s health across different population groups’ which are a result 
of social inequalities ‘in the conditions in which people are born, grow, live, work and 
age’.i].  In February 2020, just before the COVID-19 pandemic, ‘The Marmot Review 
10 Years On’ was published. It reported that socioeconomic differences in health 
have increased in England over the last decade. In Gloucestershire, boys born in the 
most deprived areas of England can expect 18.6 fewer years of good health than 
those born in the least deprived areas. The pattern is similar for girls. 

During the first wave of the COVID-19 pandemic it became apparent that certain 
people are more vulnerable to catching the virus, developing severe symptoms and 
dying than others.  In June, Public Health England (PHE) published ‘Disparities in 
the risk and outcomes of COVID-19’ which found that among people already 
diagnosed with COVID-19, people who were 80 or older were seventy times more 
likely to die than those under 40. Risk of dying was also higher for males, those living 
in more deprived areas, and higher Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
groups.ii  This pattern is being repeated and even exacerbated in the second wave.

In August PHE published its report ‘Beyond the data: Understanding the impact of 
COVID-19 on BAME groups’, which focused specifically on the unequal impact of 
COVID-19 on BAME groups. It explored the underlying reasons for this inequality 
and made seven recommendations across employee safety and wellbeing, service 
delivery, community engagement and health promotion and system wide attention to 
the key socioeconomic and environmental determinants of health.  

Wider societal measures to control the spread of the virus have also 
disproportionately affected society.  The long-term impacts of control measures on 
education, employment and the economy risk exacerbating health inequalities now 
and over years to come.  Further impacts of the control measures, which are likely to 
be experienced disproportionately by different groups in society, include social 
isolation, mental health issues (anxiety and depression), increased alcohol 
consumption and domestic abuse.

Addressing health inequalities locally
As Gloucestershire looks forward to recovery, it is even more important to honour 
and expand on longstanding commitments to tackle the root causes of health 
inequalities.  Many organisations and partnerships are now focused on embedding 
the lessons learned this year and ensuring that health inequalities have a higher 
priority in the future.  The activity summarised below is not intended to provide a 
comprehensive picture of all the work that is underway in the county but to highlight 

Page 37



some of the key work-streams that are being driven forward to strengthen and 
accelerate our local approach. 

In July of this year, the Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing Board pledged to 
adopt an ‘anchor institution’ approach as a key part of its plan to address health 
inequalities. This approach capitalises on the significant leverage of organisations 
such as local authorities, the NHS and educational institutions as employers, 
purchasers, land and asset owners and community leaders.  This is now being taken 
forward a particular focus on tackling health inequalities post-COVID-19 among 
BAME communities.  
Initial steps are to: 

 develop a shared understanding among local organisations of what anchor 
institutions in Gloucestershire are and what could be done to support the local 
economy and progress the recommendations within the PHE report on 
COVID-19 among BAME communities

 summarise current anchor institution activity in the county 
 and to develop an agreed way forward for building on this.   

In September, the Director of Public Health published her 2020 Annual Report 
focusing on BAME and inequality.  A Task and Finish group has been established to 
engage with BAME communities as equal partners to take forward the 
recommendations within the Report, including participatory research to better 
understand the determinants of COVID-19 in BAME communities and develop 
interventions to help mitigate immediate and longer-term risks to health. 

Work is also underway to develop a Gloucestershire Health Inequalities Framework, 
which will complement the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and provide a clear 
framework for action.  This will support a structured approach to understanding and 
tackling health inequalities in Gloucestershire.  It distils a number of key tools from 
the overwhelming range available to help organisations and partnerships to work out 
what they can do to reduce health inequalities, from persistent health inequalities to 
new inequalities emerging in the context of COVID-19.  A number of these tools will 
be tested locally over forthcoming weeks and a draft of the Framework will be 
available by the end of March.  

Anchor institutions share a number of key characteristics: geographic immobility (strong ties to the 
geographic area in which they are based through invested capital, mission and relationship to 
customers and employees); size (they tend to be large employers with significant purchasing power); 
and non-profit. While there are examples of for-profit organisations, these institutions tend to operate 
not-for-profit)

Page 38



i Marmot, M. et al (2010) Fair Society, Healthy Lives. 
www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthy-lives-themarmot-review/fair-
society-healthy-lives-full-report-pdf.pdf 
ii PHE (2020i) Disparities in the risk and outcomes of COVID-19.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/90
8434/Disparities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of_COVID_August_2020_update.pdf

Page 39

http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthy-lives-themarmot-review/fair-society-healthy-lives-full-report-pdf.pdf
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthy-lives-themarmot-review/fair-society-healthy-lives-full-report-pdf.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908434/Disparities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of_COVID_August_2020_update.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908434/Disparities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of_COVID_August_2020_update.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Integrated Commissioning

Response to Covid-19
March – December 2020

Page 41



2

Aims and Objectives: Integrated Commissioning and the Bronze - Elderly and 
Vulnerable People Cell (EVP)

All Integrated Commissioning staff have been involved in the projects and services 
associated with the Bronze EVP Cell. This work has been interwoven into all 
elements of business as usual and programmes of change that were being 
undertaken prior to the pandemic. The main aims and objectives of the workforce 
within in commissioning had been focused on the following aims and objectives as 
below;

 Assess risk associated with changed circumstances, Identify members of the 
community who are vulnerable and mobilise additional support as required for 
vulnerable and elderly people 

 Work with District Councils and VCS partners through the Community Resilience 
Cell to:
 -  share intelligence and communicate service information regarding any 
temporary service changes e.g. community hubs (collating and sharing with 
Districts) and 
 -  promote and support community resilience and self-help 

 Working with Adult Social Care to share information and support timely discharge 
from hospital and 6 week bed based assessment.

 Protect and support GCC and CCG  employees and promote wellbeing
 Facilitate businesses and voluntary sector organisations to mitigate the impact of 

the situation 
 Working with the social care market to continue to enable the continued provision 

of safe and sustainable services to people with social care needs.
 Working with the voluntary and community sector to support vulnerable people 

and their carers to stay safe at home
 Take learning from successes and challenges of the Covid-19 first wave 

response, taking a system approach to any rapidly devised solutions as we 
continue to respond the any future waves of the pandemic.

 Integrated Commissioning and EVP Bronze Cell - Responsibilities

 To contribute to improving effectiveness and timeliness of local processes for 
triangulation of, and sharing of, information as appropriate during Covid-19; 
working towards both early identification and resolution of issues, and reducing 
duplication

 To oversee, and implement, all aspects of national guidance across health and 
social care for all Independent Sector Providers

 To ensure Integrated Care System ( ICS) partners are kept informed and are 
communicated with 

Page 42



3

 To ensure that those delivering services on behalf of the Integrated Care System 
(ICS) adhere to contractual and regulatory (CQC) requirements

 To take appropriate action where contractual, regulatory and quality criteria are 
not met or adhered to.

 Where quality standards are not met, to agree a framework for monitoring, action 
and escalation; taking into account the level of risk and effectiveness of actions to 
date 

 Pursuant to the above, where there are safety concerns and safeguarding 
matters to work partnership with Gloucestershire’s Safeguarding Teams in a 
multi-agency approach, to ensure these issues are followed up robustly

 To implement, monitor and continue to develop systems and processes for 
Quality Assurance

 To identify and address gaps in assurance as a priority

 To identify key priority areas for action / development / support

 To provide access to, or relevant information on, training or resources identified 
in relation to quality, safety or contractual breaches 

 To promote good practice and achieve excellence by sharing evidence-based 
guidance, governance and quality issues with relevant groups and partner 
agencies and explore opportunities for further joint working and shared learning. 
Working closely with representatives from Adult Social Care Operations, 
Performance & Information, Proud to Care, Care Home Support Team, 
Healthwatch, Gloucestershire Health & Care NHS Trust, Gloucestershire Care 
Providers Association.

Established work streams associated with the EVP Bronze Cell

In order to enable us to focus our time and efforts in the most effective manner to 
support our most vulnerable citizens we have clustered our efforts into the following 
user cohort work- streams;

 Learning Disabilities 
 Frailty, Dementia & End of Life
 Older People
 Continuing Health Care
 Mental Health

Page 43



4

In addition we have also focused our work on the following system and 
transformational programmes that underpin changes in and across our system, 
namely;

 Health and Housing
 Workforce - Proud to Care Programme
 Home First – Enhanced Independence Offer
 Community Care Offer

Lastly, there are several key areas of work that we have had to change, grow and 
enhance our offer in order to meet the challenges associated with the current 
pandemic. In addition there are a few service responses that we have had to create 
from scratch to ensure we are meeting the needs of our most vulnerable citizens. 
These are;

 Integrated Brokerage Function
 Vulnerable People Helpline
 Independent Sector Providers for Health & Social Care Scrutiny and Support 

Group 

Page 44



5

1. People with Disabilities

 Weekly meetings of co-chairs of 5 Partnership Boards (LD, PDSI, MH, Autism& 
Carers), escalated issues via the emergency planning cells which led to quick 
decisions. This kept Gloucestershire one step ahead of the curve in the way the 
pandemic unfolded.

 Regular Bulletins (pictured) to support people with disabilities and their carers:-
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/health-and-social-
care/disabilities/partnership-boards/ 

 Worked with Inclusion Gloucestershire to develop a specific accessible COVID 
website for people with disabilities:
 https://www.inclusiongloucestershire.co.uk/covid-19

Disability & Mental Health Providers

 Regular Provider Check-Ins.
 Risk Stratification of all placements.  Shared intelligence across operational 

teams in GCC, GHC and CCG.
 Monthly Provider Bulletins. 

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/provider-information/ 
 Worked with Health Professionals to ensure reasonable adjustments were made 

for people with LD on G-Care: -  
https://g-care.glos.nhs.uk/pathway/590/resourc e/7#chapter_6535  

2. Frailty, Dementia & End of Life

 ICS EoL CV19 Sub-Group established within emergency planning cell structure 
to rapidly respond to system needs to support people at EoL.

 Support for Hospices to ensure they have sufficient access to PPE and CV19 
testing.

 Regular risk meetings to monitor financial situation.
 Proactive approach with operational partners e.g. facilitating closer partnership 

working between District Nursing Service and Hospices to improve resilience and 
capacity to address increasing demand.

 Review of Out of Hours District Nursing Service in response to increased demand 
for people dying at home.

 Remodelling of GHFT admission avoidance teams to improve efficiency and flow.
 ICS Dementia Steering Group established to ensure coordinated system wide 

planning and response. Innovative approaches to co-diagnosis of dementia to 
mitigate  MAS staff redeployment and increased numbers of people on waiting 
lists.

 Population Health Management Approach to identify and support people living 
with moderate and severe frailty and most at risk due to impact of CV19 and 
associated restrictions.

Page 45

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/disabilities/partnership-boards/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/disabilities/partnership-boards/
https://www.inclusiongloucestershire.co.uk/covid-19/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/provider-information/
https://g-care.glos.nhs.uk/pathway/590/resource/7


6

 Vulnerable People Telephone Support Service implemented to provide welfare 
checks on behalf of primary care to people shielding and identified as “clinically 
vulnerable”.

 Development of new pathways within Complex Care @Home  model in response 
to demand resulting from pandemic.

 Further roll out of Telehealth to additional cohorts to meet need for virtual 
monitoring

3. Older People
Provider relief payment: 
 10% additional payment for each month from April to September for all care 

homes and domiciliary care providers. 

Infection control fund: 
 Administered ICF to care homes, domiciliary care, supported living in Round 1. 

Funding also used to bolster PPE stocks and to fund flu vaccination programme 
for care staff. 

 Round 2 will additionally go to day services and the voluntary sector. 

Visitation guidance:
 Worked across system to develop guidance on safe visitation for families to care 

homes.
 Enhancing digital capability: Embryonic project to map all ICS digital expectations 

of care providers and align projects to facilitate provider engagement. 

Market Liaison: 
 Regular meetings with provider representative organisation to ensure good 

communication and address issues raised.

Carers:
 Carer aware campaign to increase carers access to priority shopping and 

services; welfare calls to over 4,000 carers; survey of carers need during 
pandemic with ‘You said, we will’ follow up.

BAME communities support:
 Worked collaboratively with colleagues in Public Health, NHS, GCC  Black 

Workers Network (BWN) and colleagues from the BAME voluntary and 
community sector to examine and develop a response  to the identified 
disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on BAME communities  of Gloucestershire.

 BWN co-authored this years Director of Public Health Annual Report  - Beyond 
Covid:  Race,  Health and Inequality in Gloucestershire. 

Page 46



7

4. Continuing Healthcare

 14.8 WTE CHC Nurse Assessors redeployed to the Acute and Community 
Hospitals.

 Supported hospital discharges across 7 days. 
 Worked in collaboration with Adult Social Care to identify needs, including for 

those individuals with a rapidly deteriorating condition to enable a safe and timely 
discharges.

 Supported CHC funded patients in the community.
 Supported with the provision of PPE for PHB holders.
 Provided Mask Fit Testing training 
 Vulnerable peoples helpline.
 Learning disability providers.
 Community Fast tracks. 

5. Mental Health
Mental Health Cells and the various work streams (including vulnerable people, 
workforce etc.)

 Multi-agency response on how to deal with those with dementia
 MCA guidance for GCC practitioners and care homes
 Staff volunteered for the vulnerable people call centre
 Ensuring business continuity and risk assessments in place 
 Partnership Board Bulletins
 Mental Health Signposting Sheet
 Co-ordinated communications for DNAR and  RESPECT forms – ensuring 

clinicians understood their responsibilities
 Developed self-advocacy guides
 Moved to virtual support for all supported employment programmes – including 

GEM online
 Developed 2 new employment programmes as a response to COVID-19

Newly Commissioned Services

 Tic+ and Young Gloucestershire
 Work with PWC

Page 47



8

6. Health & Housing
Home moves: 
 Where possible facilitating moves for people, from hospital to home, or from one 

household setting to  a more appropriate setting.

Homeless Cell:
 Representation of health on Homeless Cell, working to provide meals in hotel 

setting where required, also working closely with homeless healthcare team.

PPE and IT Distribution: 
 Proactive work early in pandemic to distribute PPE to key workers . Also assisting 

with IT deliveries to GP practices.

Welfare calls:
 Calls made to Gloucestershire residents shielding during lockdown. Calls made 

as part of county council and CCG initiatives.

Equipment:
 Service moved from 5 days a week to 7 to support system follow and discharge.  
 Ordering query and prescribing phone line established for prescribers.  
 PPE and Covid-secure processes quickly adopted to ensure safe delivery of kit.  

Telecare service moved to 7 days to support discharge.  
 Quick adoption of Covid-19 Discharge Guidance across the services.  
 Equipment review underway.

Home Adaptations:
 Fewer referrals received but service maintained and countywide improvements 

worked on.  Variation required to support providers through GCC.

7. Workforce – Proud to Care

Development of fast track recruitment initiative: 
 Within 2 weeks of lockdown developed a robust process that has seen 115 

candidates apply and 35 deployed into the sector. Feedback from providers and 
candidates has been so positive we are looking to develop this as a traded 
subsidised service going forward.

 Adapted existing offers to virtual delivery to support the sector at a difficult time. 
For example delivered 3 cohorts of Sector Based Work Academies to individuals 
on universal credit to promote careers in adult social care and support them to 
join the sector.

Page 48



9

8. Home First

 Full winter bespoke plan and specification for winter/COVID
 Streamlining of pathways out of Acute Hospitals, Community Hospitals, into 

Home First
 Supporting the development of the ToCB by placing dedicated HF staff into the 

acute
 Collaboration with external market “Winter Alliance” for shortfalls in capacity
 Workshops with Coordinators and Managers to ensure working is streamlined 

and capacity is maximised wherever

9. Community Care 
Assessment Beds:
 In response to national discharge guidance, rapid implementation of assessment 

bed units within 4 care homes as a direct extension of acute hospital discharge 
pathway; flexed admission criteria for patients no longer requiring acute hospital 
care;  wraparound MDT and clinical support from care home registered GP 
practice, adult social care, CHC and therapy teams; working with county’s patient 
transport provider to ensure discharges supported.

“Out of Hospital Service”: 
 Joint Age UK/British Red Cross service providing admission avoidance and 

discharge support to acute and community hospitals; enhanced and flexible 
service delivery in response to Covid-19 and into winter; extending telephone 
welfare calls to urgent care front door.

Support to Urgent Care and System Flow:
 Participating in cell meetings for activity, flow and bed planning and weekly/daily 

escalation calls; supporting coordinated system response to fluctuating demand; 
and capacity planning 

Pulse Oximeters in Care Homes: 
 Aligning with virtual wards, coordination and delivery of pulse oximeters into care 

homes to assist with early detection of respiratory distress in residents;  “How To” 
guide and escalation process written for care home staff.

Lateral Flow Testing:
 Working with care homes to ensure roll-out of devices for visitor testing (initially 

50 care homes in Gloucestershire).

Page 49



10

Seasonal Flu Vaccinations to Independent Sector workforce:  
 After securing funding via IFC grant, participation in Gloucestershire Flu Planning 

Groups to provide coordination, communication and delivery of flu vaccine to all 
independent sector workforce, including unpaid carers;  hybrid roving model of 
delivery utilising existing GHC Care Home Support Team staff and community 
pharmacists; community drive-thru clinics set up across the county to ensure as 
much coverage as possible;  targeted email and verbal communications to 
providers to promote availability and  uptake.  

Workforce:
 Collation of Integrated Commissioning staff redeployment offer at the outset of 

wave 1; directorate support to the ICC overseeing the county response to the 
pandemic;  

 Despite Covid-19, we have continued to develop the CCG staff apprenticeship 
scheme to move to full utilisation of the levy fund; commencement of 5 graduate 
management trainees across the CCG;  linking with GCC to become “Kickstart” 
employer as per national programme.

10. Brokerage

 1657 PPE deliveries of 3,316,352 items
 22 Infection Control Reviews 
 1200 on average telephone calls per week
 141  Guidance updates issued
 8 – 8 working 7 days a week
 35,000 contacts – 1000 average per week
 Co-ordination of CV19 tests
 1,300 Supplier Relief Payments
 1,400 Infection Control Payments 
 9,100 payments made through ECM
 45 Provider webinars in Partnership with Gloucestershire Care Provider 

Association (GCPA)
 39 Virtual Provider Forums
 29 Integrated Care System Independent Sector Meetings with dedicated GCPA 

slot

Page 50



11

11. Vulnerable People Telephone Support
Wave 1-Telephone Hub

 ICS led joint project.
 Telephoned and carried out a welfare check on nearly 10,000 people on behalf of 

Primary Care.
 Clinically vulnerable as identified nationally and locally defined.
 Signposted to sources of support
 Complex Care at Home involved in telephoning and providing support and home 

visits.

Wave 2- Virtual Hub

 Carers hub, Community Wellbeing Service and Age UK telephoning all of those 
known to them to check.

 Offer requested from Gloucester City for more bespoke support.
 Identified all those over 85, with moderate to severe frailty and another condition.
 Complex Care at Home telephoning and completing Welfare Check

12. Independent Sector Providers for Health & Social Care
    Scrutiny and Support Group 

Overview

In the spring of 2019 we created the above group in order to provide assurance of 
the effectiveness and quality of services during Covid-19 for those Gloucestershire 
adults who are receiving care from an Independent Service Provider (ISP). 

The remit of this Group is to oversee care and support delivered to residents in 
nursing and residential care homes in Gloucestershire, or citizens receiving care and 
support in their own home, including those in supported living or extra care housing 
environments.

This includes all citizens receiving short or long term care from a Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) registered provider for any care category, aged 18 years and 
over, normally registered with a Gloucestershire GP.

Monitoring the capacity and resilience of care homes, Community care 
organisations and where appropriate and possible, supporting their resilience.

Care categories, include but not limited to:

 Autism 
 Frailty
 Physical disabilities

•

Page 51



12

 Learning disabilities
 Mental ill health
 Dementia
 End of Life
 Continuing Health Care

 Aims 

To seek assurance that services delivered by Independent Sector Providers are 
Safe, Effective, Caring, Responsive and Well-led during Covid-19 by:

 Sharing intelligence to inform priorities, direct resources appropriately and 
evaluate impact;

 Identifying risks, agreeing mitigating actions and escalating as appropriate;

 Ensuring effective ICS systems and processes are in place, identifying any gaps;

 Ensuring a framework of urgent action and confidentiality is in place 

To provide assurance for the wider ICS in relation to safeguarding and protecting 
health.

To provide the co-ordination of effective multi-agency working for protecting 
individuals receiving care from harm.

To promote the safety and wellbeing of individuals in a care setting and to promote 
the safety and wellbeing of staff.

To ensure Owners and Managers are providing access to resources to protect their 
staff’s physical and mental wellbeing. 

To ensure Owners and Managers undertake their safeguarding responsibilities to 
protect adults in their care from abuse and neglect.

To work in partnership with range of agencies and teams to achieve best health and 
social outcomes for individuals.

To provide strategic oversight of plans to prevent and manage outbreaks of Covid-19 
in these settings.

Page 52



13

Accountability and reporting

The group has the following reporting and accountability structure: 

In addition to this accountability structure this group recognises existing assurance 
structures and boards, such as CQRG, QAF and Providers Risk Matrix. 

Supporting Independent 
Sector Care Providers 

Group

Vulnerable People Bronze 
Cell

Local Silver Health Tactical 
Coordination Group 

GCC Gold 

GCC Silver
(tbc)

Local Gold Health System 
Strategic Command 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



1

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(Joint Meeting with Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 

PUBLIC HEALTH 
Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health Report

26 January 2021

Next Steps Accommodation Programme (NSAP) Update 

The following update has been provided regarding Gloucestershire’s bid for the 
MHCLG’s Next Steps Accommodation Programme, as reported to Committee in 
September 2020.  This programme was created to fund a range of additional 
properties and support arrangements that were:

 deemed to be deliverable by March 2021, and 
  appropriate for the level and types of needs of those who were homelessness 

and accommodated during the pandemic.

Gloucestershire’s bid was very successful with a total of £3.8 million of funding 
granted for 11 projects, with a combined potential to realise 51 units of 
accommodation. Funding, both revenue and capital, has been allocated to District 
Councils and/or relevant providers directly.  The below is a summary of delivery to 
date:

Short term/ interim projects:

This was mainly for emergency accommodation and support within it across 
Gloucester, Tetbury and Stroud. Funds were also granted to furnish units in 
Cheltenham and deliver a training programme to link people with No Recourse to 
Public Funds (NRPF) to employment opportunities (see risk section below).

£176,827 spent to date of £296,542 allocation.

Capital funding for accommodation:

£939,392 spent to date of £2,064,000 allocation.

Units purchased in Cinderford and Gloucester totalling 23 units of accommodation. 
These are all currently under development and expected to achieve the 31st March 
deadline for completion.

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



2

The Cinderford Units are supported with staff on site,  where as the other units are to 
benefit from a floating support service (as below) with varying levels of support 
depending on individuals’ needs.

Revenue funding for support: 

3 years funding, totalling a maximum of £1,478,708. to deliver floating support 
across units delivered as a result of the NSAP funding. The final amount of funding 
will be determined by the number of units of accommodation completed and 
available for allocation by the March deadline.

Risks:

4 of the 11 schemes have been delayed:

• The Training Programme for individuals with no recourse to public funds - 
Lockdown #3 has meant that this programme has been put on hold as learners 
are not able to attend the training and do not have the ability to learn online. 

• The deadline for completing one of the larger accommodation schemes remains 
challenging, but all parties are working hard to overcome the specific challenges 
associated with this scheme. 

• Stroud Open Market Purchase- delayed due to the current property market 
conditions. 

• Floating support – the level of funding available for support is directly linked to the 
number of accommodation units finally delivered.  An incremental approach to 
mobilising support is being planned.

Routine commissioning of Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis for HIV (PrEP)

Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (or PrEP) is a medicine which can prevent individuals 
from contracting HIV. When taken in accordance with recommended use, PrEP has 
been shown to significantly reduce the risk of acquiring HIV infection in those at high 
risk of exposure to the disease. 

Earlier this year, following the completion of a three-year Impact Trial, the 
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) confirmed that local authorities would 
assume responsibility for the routine commissioning of PrEP alongside their existing 
statutory responsibilities for sexual health. Local authorities have received additional 
funding from DHSC to deliver this. 

In Gloucestershire, the free provision of PrEP to eligible individuals has been added 
to our service specification with Gloucestershire Health and Care (GHC) for the 
Specialist Sexual health Service (SHS); and the new provision was rolled out in the 
county from the 1 December 2020. The county’s SHS were participating in the 

Page 56



3

national PrEP Impact Trial, so had an existing patient list already in receipt of the 
medication. 

DHSC funding allocations to LAs for PrEP were based on estimated uptake figures, 
and public health commissioners will be working with GHC colleagues to monitor 
local uptake over the coming months.  

The provision of PrEP free via sexual health services to those at highest risk of 
exposure to HIV is part of the Government’s stated aim to end HIV transmission by 
2030. PrEP presents benefits both for the individual and the wider health and social 
care system in terms of avoided HIV treatment and social care costs. Studies 
suggest that the availability of PrEP can help encourage individuals who higher risk 
of STIs to attend sexual health clinics more regularly. Those receiving PrEP are 
required to undertake more frequent STI testing meaning that any infections can be 
diagnosed and treated promptly. 

Public Mental Health – update 

The County Council is continuing to work with integrated commissioning colleagues 
at the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), service providers, and partner agencies 
to monitor and respond to the ongoing impact of the pandemic on mental health, 
particularly in light of the national lockdown. A full briefing was submitted to the 
November Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee; and a special presentation on 
children and young people’s mental health was given to the Children and Families 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (with HOSC and ASC Scrutiny members in 
attendance). 

Since the briefings were submitted, the CCG have secured NHS England winter 
pressure funding for mental health; some of which is being invested in a joint 
communications campaign to promote local services and support. The campaign is 
being developed by communication teams at the County Council, CCG and 
Gloucestershire Health and Care, and is expected to launch in mid January across a 
range of media channels. Messaging will target adults and children and young 
people. 

Additional virtual training is being offered to front line stakeholders on suicide 
prevention; alongside mental health awareness training for those working with 
individuals who may have financial or employment issues exacerbated by the 
pandemic. The workforce wellbeing group, a sub-group of the Mental Health and 
Wellbeing Cell is continuing to work with colleagues from across the ICS to consider 
the impact of Covid-19 on the mental wellbeing of the workforce, including those in 
front line roles.  

Page 57



4

Separate to our work on Covid-19, commissioners have also submitted a proposal to 
NHS England for funding to develop local support for individuals bereaved through 
suicide. We expect to receive confirmation of the outcome of the proposal in the 
coming months. To help inform our approach, the team is issuing a survey to elicit 
the views of people with lived experience of being bereaved due to suicide. 

The new GloW (Gloucestershire Wellbeing) community grants scheme closed to 
applications in November. 57 applications were received from a range of community 
groups across the county; with schemes focused on supporting emotional wellbeing 
and improving social connectivity through community-based activities. A total of 
£50K grant funding is available in the first year of the programme funded via the 
county’s bid to the NHS England suicide prevention transformation fund. Applicants 
have been required to submit covid-19 risk assessments; and activities will need to 
comply with current guidance. It is hoped to confirm the successful applications in 
February.

Page 58



ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
(Joint meeting with Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

ADULT SOCIAL CARE
Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health Report

26 January 2021

_________________________________________________  

Adult Social Care

 All day centres and respite units now operating at reduced attendance levels.
 Welfare checks being carried out weekly and alternative support options being 

offered.
 Review of all in house services has commenced.
 ASC locality staff undertaking reassessments for all individuals that were in 

receipt of COVID-19 funding between March and Aug 2020 - work nearly 
complete/deadline of March 2021 will be achieved.

 Locality Team Pending lists significantly reduced – only 2 locality teams now 
have a small pending list. 48% reduction in overall numbers awaiting an 
assessment in the last month.

 ASC staff have been redeployed to cover assessment beds at 2 further 
community based sites:-  Chestnut and Millbrook care homes will increase 
assessment bed capacity by 40.

 Cotswolds Care Home with 28 Residents closed 23rd Dec – all safely moved 
within 24hrs.

 Transfer of Care Bureau now operating fully and determining patient 
discharge pathways from hospital settings. This takes place twice a day and 
ASC reps take a lead role.

 Customer Services Team supporting colleagues in health with track and trace 
phone calls 7 days a week from 9.01.21. 

 Joint commissioning equipment review at GIS ongoing.
 Blue Badge team continuing to provide the service with desktop and 

telephone assessments.
 Care Services Finance continuing to provide the service remotely with a rota 

in place for a member of staff providing Children’s services access to petty 
cash. 

 FAB Team - global uplift deferred from April was applied in October. The 2021 
rates for global uplift advised by DWP, due to be applied April 2021. 

Technology and Adult Social Care

We are consulting on our draft Technology Strategy which sets out our ambitions for 
embracing innovation in adult social care over the next three years. The strategy 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



outlines our vision for the future, describes how our small scale pilots are providing 
us with a proof of concept and will agree an action plan for the coming years. 

Our digital trials are demonstrating that there is potential to be realised if we listen 
carefully to what people need and help them find the technology that can support 
their independence.  With that in mind, we have established a Community of Practice 
which is a forum which brings together people who have an interest in how 
technology can help those lead full and independent lives, and help us to understand 
what is important to them and how it can improve our knowledge and understanding. 
To date, the technology available in a developing market seems better at promoting 
and maintaining independence than it does in addressing or reversing crisis, so we 
will continue to work with partners and the wider community on the early intervention 
and prevention agenda.  

Our current activity includes trialling digital devices, apps and other technologies 
which we believe can promote independence and innovation. One example of a trial 
that is about to launch is Brain in Hand, an app aimed primarily at supporting people 
living with mental ill health, autism and related conditions that provides personalised 
advice to help people get through day-to-day difficulties and provides access to a 
responder service if someone is really struggling.

Liquidlogic Adults System Implementation Programme (LASIP) 

The new case management system, Liquidlogic Adults System (LAS) is on course to 
go live on 29th March 2021.  Prior to go live, approximately 1,000 end users (GCC 
and partner staff) will be trained virtually in how to use the system over a 10-week 
period starting on 11th January. Additional support has been secured from 
Liquidlogic for 5 weeks after go live, to answer staff questions and ensure a smooth 
transition. The final round of testing will be completed by 4th February, when the 
system configuration and data migration are due to be formally signed off.

The LASIP team are also working to finalise arrangements for the change over from 
ERIC to LAS, to ensure that the business is fully prepared and supported through the 
change, including close collaboration with Strategic Finance, Brokerage, Data teams, 
Operations and ICT.  Additional development work to provide integration between 
our new case management system and our existing Reablement system also 
continues. Initial planning discussions are already taking place between Liquidlogic 
and GCC for LASIP Phase 2, which includes the implementation of the Adults Portal 
and Mobile app.

Safeguarding Adults Services

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board
The Board has commissioned 3 reviews which are currently being undertaken:

PH Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR).
Relates to the death of a homeless man with mental health issues in Cheltenham in 
November 2019. Initially there were difficulties in securing a reviewer due to the 

Page 60



pandemic, however work is now underway with learning events planned for late 
January and early February. 

Thematic Reviews
Sex Workers Outreach Project (SWOP)
A thematic review is being carried out regarding the deaths of 5 women known to the 
SWOP. All five had substance misuse issues and complex needs. 

Alcohol Related Deaths
This thematic review was commenced at the request of Gloucestershire Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust as a result of a notable increase in the number of people 
dying in hospital during the pandemic due to alcohol related issues. 
All of the above reviews concern people with complex needs, and behaviours which 
place them at high risk of harm. It is hoped that the reviews may provide some useful 
learning on how to work more effectively with people who exhibit such behaviours 
and who often do not engage with the services and support available.

Safeguarding Adults Team
The enquiry into large scale financial abuse and fraud by a member of staff at a 
supported living service is ongoing, led by the Police. 
1900 safeguarding concerns have been received in 20/21, of which 539 (28%) 
became section 42 enquiries, compared to 1713 concerns and 642 enquiries at the 
same point in 19/20. In addition the team has received over 3000 contacts this year 
in the referral centre. 

DoLS Service
The replacement for DoLS, known as the Liberty Protection Safeguards, is due to be 
implemented in April 2022, delayed from a proposed date of October 2020. The LPS 
Project group reconvenes this month to continue with implementation planning.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



1

FIRE AND RESCUE

Response to COVID-19

Throughout this national emergency, whilst collaborating with GCC colleagues, our 
regional and national FRS and Blue Light colleagues, GFRS have supported and 
contributed to our community. By maintaining a strong and resilient service, whilst 
looking after our own staff affected by the Coronavirus, using skills, resources and a 
‘can do’ attitude in supporting the wider combined response, we have worked 
together to develop consistent approaches and ensure that the health, safety and 
wellbeing of our staff and communities remain at the top of the agenda.  

The actions of GFRS throughout the pandemic, which continue to date, have been 
specifically recognised in a letter (dated 23.11.20) received from the Fire Minister, 
Lord Greenhalgh, following an application to the Fire Covid-19 Contingency Fund:
  
“After having carefully reviewed the application of Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service, I have decided to make an award £91,465 from the Contingency Fund to 
fully cover the cost of activities included in the claim, and thereby to waive the 0.2% 
threshold requirement. In reaching this decision, I have recognised the exemplary 
work that the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service has been carrying out in its 
response to the pandemic, despite a challenging financial backdrop and limited 
amount of COVID-19 funding being made available through the County Council. I 
hope that this award will encourage the Fire and Rescue Service to keep up the 
good work as we head into a challenging winter.”

Title Chief Fire Officer Report – Joint Adult Social Care and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Chief 
Fire 
Officer 
Suite of 
Services

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service, Trading Standards, 
Civil Protection and Coroners Services. 

Date 26 January 2021

Purpose 
of Report

To provide a strategic update on issues and key areas of 
service provision, opportunities and challenges

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



2

In addition, GFRS were subject to a ‘first round’ HMICFRS COVID-19 Inspection 
during November 2020.  The inspectors considered (a) What is working well and 
what is being learned; (b) How the fire sector is responding to the COVID-19 crisis; 
(c) How fire services are dealing with the problems they face; (d) What changes are 
likely as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Although the findings of the inspection are not yet publicly available, it is apparent 
that GFRS have performed well and the report is favourable. 

GFRS have been instrumental and a forerunner in supporting many activities from 
the onset, many that other FRS’ are only recently implementing/supporting.  A 
summary/ update of our activities is summarised below:

 Community COVID Testing:
o The recent government announcement that all those that cannot work 

from home can access LFD (Lateral Flow Device) testing has created 
some issues. However, GCC and GFRS are looking at how this can 
be implemented

o The Operational Resilience Cell, together with colleagues from GCC, 
Public Health and DHSC are looking to establish a Local Testing Site 
(LTS) at various locations around the County. This is a walk-in model 
that will allow people to access a full PCR (Polymerase Chain 
Reaction) test without the need for an appointment. The first LTS will 
be located in Gloucester City (site to be confirmed 15.1.21)

o A Mass Testing Site at the Royal Agricultural University, Cirencester 
went live on 3rd December 2020, with training and induction taking 
place in conjunction with colleagues from GCC.  GFRS continue to 
supply staff to deliver this project

o In response to rising infection rates, a testing site in Gloucester City is 
being set up, ready for a “go live” date of the 13th January. It is 
expected that GFRS staff will be involved

o Crews are carrying out test & trace welfare checks on residents in the 
County who do not respond to contact by national or local test & trace 
services. We are working with Public Health to review the impact this 
activity has on outcomes. At least 1000 of these visits have been 
carried out by GFRS staff

 COVID vaccinations:
o Clinical staff inductions took place at the Primary Care Networks led 

vaccination site at Cheltenham East Fire Station on 2nd December 
and delivered its first COVID vaccination clinic on 16th December to 
the most vulnerable in our community. The site delivered some 330 
vaccines each day prior to the Christmas break. Capacity is expected 
to quickly rise to 1000+ per day. The Watches at Cheltenham East 
Fire Station set up and dismantle the clinic each day, whilst remaining 
on hand during the day to assist. The Operational Resilience Cell are 
currently making preparations for further vaccination centres as 
required

o The NHS Acute Team have confirmed that they would like to take up 
our offer of using SkillZONE to deliver COVID vaccinations and begin 
use on Monday 18th January. 

Page 64



3

The additional vaccination site, run by Gloucestershire Health and 
Care NHS Foundation Trust, is currently being set up and will initially 
cater for approx 20k frontline health and social care workers. Staff 
from SkillZONE will be supporting the day-to-day operations

 Flu Vaccinations:
o Flu vaccination clinics have been taking place at some of our on call 

stations including: Cheltenham East, Gloucester North, Coleford, 
Cinderford, Stroud, and Wotton

o Additional weekend drive-through clinics have been set up at 
Gloucester North, Stroud, Cirencester, Chipping Camden and 
Cheltenham East. These are run by the Gloucestershire Pharmacy 
Network and targetted those most vulnerable groups such as care 
home staff and domiciliary workers. GFRS staff assisted in the 
facilitation of these clinics

o This programme of work continues with clinics scheduled at 
Cheltenham West on 18th & 19th January, and Gloucester North on 
16th & 23rd January

 Mortality Cell:
o The Mortality Cell and temporary Chapel of Rest was “re-opened” on 

Wednesday 16th December and GFRS staff are in place to receive and 
process the deceased. Current projections lead us to believe it will run 
until 23rd March. However, this could change depending on the 
success of the national lockdown, along with how quickly we vaccinate 
at risk groups in Gloucestershire. Support and welfare is being offered 
to these staff

o GFRS had anticipated the need to assist, so had asked for volunteers 
prepared to work in the areas covered within the Tripartite Agreement. 
Sixty-three individuals put themselves forward for mortuary work and 
body recovery. Each of the volunteers received a mental health 
assessment and were selected on driving skills and availability. An 
administration team was appointed to organise and supervise a 24/7 
body recovery capability. A dedicated phone line was set up, along 
with a 24/7 welfare facility and lease vehicles were retro-fitted for the 
task

o The body recovery team operates in pairs, three during the day and 
one at night. Eight mortuary attendants from GFRS work with police 
colleagues at the temporary mortuary to process and store the 
deceased by both day and by night. The GFRS Welfare Cell makes 
regular contact with all of its volunteers, and TRiM practitioners call 
each team member after each shift

 PPE/IPC Training:
o GFRS have warehoused and distributed emergency PPE supplies to 

social care, school and other key users.  GFRS supply chain, via the 
NFCC procurement hub, has been used to procure extra supplies

o Since the start of the pandemic, GFRS have made 3861 individual 
deliveries of PPE to various settings in the County, which equates to 
8.5 million pieces of PPE

o The recent increases in infection rates, particularly in care homes has 
resulted in an increased demand for training in these care settings. 
Additional ORC resources have been allocated to this task and over 
200 care home staff have requested and received IPC/PPE training as 
part of the second wave response

Page 65



4

 SWASfT:
o Mutual Aid Phase 2 Additional Request:

 Formal confirmation has been provided to SWAFfT of GFRS’ 
continued support in respect of an extension of the provision of 
FRS mutual aid until w/c Monday 7th April 2021

 During the period 1st Nov 20 – 11th Jan 21, GFRS provided 174 
shifts and attended 637 incidents as part of an ambulance 
crew, equating to some 1485 mobilisations since the 
commencement of the mutual aid agreement

 SWASfT have declared a critical incident due to the 
unprecedented demand on their service. GFRS continues to 
increase the number of shifts covered. The response to the 
recent advert for additional volunteers has been good and we 
will have additional staff trained shortly

o Operation Braidwood:
 Additional training sessions for GFRS staff who have put 

themselves forward for assisting the ambulance service have 
taken place. We now have an additional 16 volunteers taking 
part in the work

 Additional welfare arrangements are in place for GFRS 
employees to support any mental wellbeing needs due to the 
potential exposure to traumatic incidents 

o Provision of P3 respirators, including fitting and testing, to 
Gloucestershire Police

o Supporting South West ambulance trust with:
o Co-responding and cardiac care across Gloucestershire
o Supplying 2 blue-light trained ambulance drivers for every 12 hour 

shift
o Respirator fitting and testing
o Storage of supplies including vital PPE

 Logistics Cell:
o To support GCC and Highways, GFRS has a team out and about in 

the County putting up signs as part of the wider COVID 
communication strategy

o Delivering food to vulnerable people: firefighters played a key part in 
ensuring shielded people got the supplies they needed

o Local Track & Trace
o Outreach swabbing
o Delivery of laptop computers to young people

HMICFRS Inspection Update
The National State of Fire & Rescue 2020 report is expected by February 2021 and 
the findings of this will be inserted into the Improvement Plan. Our progress against 
our Improvement Plan has been reviewed by HMICFRS and they will report their 
findings imminently.

An extensive ‘Improvement Plan’, which includes culture, has been completed.  This 
has been phased, and an analysis of capacity is being undertaken.    

The Improvement Plan has been prioritised over the next 3 years and consideration 
has been given to an analysis of capacity needed to achieve it satisfactorily.

Page 66



5

In relation to the two causes of concern raised, good progress is continuing to be 
made in Business Fire Safety and consistent activity is underway to address culture 
and values. Although this is slow and, at times, sporadic due to the response to 
COVID, we are identifying new ways of working and making progress. HMICFRS 
are reviewing our submitted plans for action in relation to Business Fire Safety and 
Culture and thereafter they will inform us if they need to return for more information.

As part of the process, data collection, document reviews, self-assessment surveys 
and staff surveys were completed and submitted in September 2020. Virtual 
inspection interviews took place with strategic leads in November 2020. The CFO 
received verbal feedback in relation to GFRS in November 2020 and a more 
detailed but unscored report is due imminently.

HMICFRS will continue their inspection programme albeit, in an appropriately 
modified way for the time being. All inspection activity carried out will be done 
remotely until the current restrictions lift. They will extend the inspection window and 
we will be flexible about deadlines for evidence returns on a case-by-case basis. 
The CFO will be contacted nearer the inspection to discuss how it can be completed 
in the least disruptive way, including when restrictions change.  For the time being, 
we are continuing to prepare for our second full inspection in Autumn this year, 
earlier than was originally scheduled.

Improvement Board
GFRS have a total of 118 audit recommendations (equating to 124 Board actions) 
following the audits that were carried out and published last year. To ensure robust 
monitoring and support can be provided, an Improvement Board (IB) was 
established in December 2019. 

For each audit action there is a ratification report that records the evidence and 
progress that has been made. Once an Area Lead is confident that the action has 
been fully addressed, the completed ratification report is put forward to the IB Panel 
for verification. If the IB is satisfied that the audit action has been  met, this will then 
be forwarded to Audit for their approval. At present, 91 actions have been 
implemented, 16 are in progress and 17 are awaiting feedback. 

As a deliberately developing and learning organisation, reviews are undertaken 
following each IB Meeting. As a result, and over the last seven months, an effective 
and more collaborative working relationship has been established between GFRS 
and the Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) Team. Training for all ARA members with the 
use of the Improvement Board Tracker and Evidence Folders has taken place and 
access to this information remains available. ARA Team members attend each IB 
meeting and have the opportunity to ask questions/support or challenge Area Leads 
where appropriate. The main reason for this is to ensure transparency and add 
another level of quality assurance in an effort to collaboratively support the efficient 
progress of the improvement journey.

Business Planning
The draft Statement of Assurance for 2019 – 2020, the look back at what we 
achieved in the previous year, was approved by SLT in September and has now 
been published.

Page 67



6

The Community Safety Annual Plan 2021 – 2022 is being developed following 
Cabinet approval to extend the Community Risk Management Plan by one year. 
A template has been designed for completion by each team to ensure there is clear 
line of sight from individual staff appraisal, right through to the Council Strategy. 
These team plans will include a review of our KPI’s and the development of LPI’s to 
support these.

Work on the 2022 – 2025 Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) is well 
underway. Three workshops have been completed to ensure SLT have input into 
the process. The first of these reflected on what we have done in the past IRMP 
(CRMP) and how to improve on it. The second considered our approach to public 
consultation on any proposals and the third considered the development of 
Prevention, Protection and Response Plans that are informed by evidential data.

The team are working to conclude all Improvement Board activities by the end of 
January.

Community Safety Team
Our recruitment campaign for wholetime firefighters is well underway. The original 
planned Positive Action had to be amended to a virtual approach due to the current 
lockdown restrictions.  The advert will be released on the 18th January 2021, with 
new firefighters expected to be crewing fire appliances in Spring/Summer 2021.

Trading Standards
Following the reintroduction of COVID Restrictions (Tier 4 and National Lockdown) 
all TS functions which require visiting premises and face-to-face contact with 
individuals, have been suspended, with the exception of physical inspections 
resulting from identifiable risk to human or livestock health and welfare, or where 
there is a compelling and recorded reason for visiting. As COVID restrictions 
continue, the risk of not being able to complete all programmed visits increases. TS 
auditing of animal feed is externally funded by the Food Standards Agency and 
failure to complete audits could impact the 2021/22 budget.  

Service Risk Assessments are continually reviewed. 

The Service continues to work closely with Public Health and District Councils 
Environmental Health colleagues under the various pieces of COVID legislation.  
There is a significant increase in reports of individuals and businesses breaching 
COVID Restrictions and TS are more engaged in actively responding to these than 
previously. 

The Service has not yet received a large influx of enquiries relating to new business 
requirements following EU Exit.  It is believed there are a number of ‘cottage 
industry’ importers of products, who must now assume responsibility for assuring 
the safety of the goods they import, are unlikely to do so.  

The level of demand on the Service in response to COVID breaches means we do 
not have the capacity to proactively identify these sellers.

Investigation work has resumed for some time, with several cases now ready to 
enter the legal process. We remain concerned that backlogs at Court could result in 
lesser penalties where matters have become stale.

Page 68



7

Coroners Services
The Coroners Service is continuing to run its entire core functions from the 
Coroners Court at Barnwood, Gloucester. Essential staff are working from home 
whenever possible, whilst continuing to take death reports and forward these to the 
Senior Coroner. Autopsies and body receipt/releases are also continuing within the 
mortuary, with enhanced PPE as directed by professional bodies. The Senior 
Coroner has relaxed expectations on internal examinations to help ease pressures 
on staff and duty pathologists.  All mortuary staff have been identified as being 
eligible for immediate vaccination.

Inquests are also continuing to operate from Barnwood during the new lockdown 
although these have minimal public attendance and the service are working with the 
GCC ICT department to investigate electronic means for allowing more people to 
virtually attend these hearings.

Civil Protection Team
CPT duty Officer is on-call 24/7 and have responded to a number of incidents 
during December / Jan as outlined below;

 Widespread flooding (23-30th December)
 Support possible evacuation of a Care home 
 Support possible evacuation of Park home site 
 Attended x3 Tactical Co-ordinating Group meetings
 Attended x2 Flood Advisory Service Meetings
 Ensured that a regular Common Information Picture was sent to all key 

stakeholders at GCC to update on incident(s) situation 

Plans 
o LRF Mass Evacuation and Shelter plan has been updated in liaison with 

key stakeholders, and after consultation with the wider LRF, has now been 
finalised. A discussion exercise is being planned for early 2021 to validate 
the plan

o The Coastal Pollution Plan consultation period has finished with final 
consultation with wider LRF commencing mid-January. A discussion exercise 
is being planned for early 2021 to validate the plan

o Further to the previous completion of the Berkeley Offsite Emergency Plan 
and provision under the Radiation Emergency Preparedness and Public 
Information Regulations (REPPIR) 2019, a briefing note has been produced 
for the Stakeholder group. This is to provide an overview of the off-site 
Emergency Plan, an explanation of why the plan has had to be re-instated, 
and information on what to do in the very unlikely event of a radiation 
emergency. Once Magnox has given approval, the briefing note will be 
shared with Stroud District Council and LRF Partners

Executive Decision Making by an Officer with Delegated Powers
 To procure suitable, fit for purpose vehicles to enable effective operational 

response to incidents and to maintain an efficient light fleet with GFRS

Report end

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Road Safety Cabinet Panel Report 

1. Membership

Cllr Dave Norman MBE (Chair) (Con) 
Cllr Tim Harman (Con) 
Cllr Terry Hale (Con) 
Cllr John Payne (PAB) 
Cllr John Cordwell (Lib Dem) 
Cllr Steve Robinson (Lab) 
Cllr Eva Ward (Green) 

2. Officer Support

Colin Chick – Executive Director for Economy, Environment and 
Infrastructure 
Mark Astle – Assistant Chief Fire Officer 
Gavin Roberts – Assistant Chief Fire Officer  
Martin Surl – Gloucestershire Police and Crime Commissioner 
Philip Williams – Lead Commissioner for Community Infrastructure 
Kath Haworth – Lead Commissioner for Highways  
Andrew Parker- Mowbray – Road Safety and Transport Data Team Leader 
Anne Johns - Assistant Engineer (Improvements) 
Nigel Lloyd Jones - Priority Lead for Safe and Social Roads 
Paul Keasey – Det. Supt. and Director of Intelligence (Glos. Constabulary) 
Beverley Hannah – Regional Road Safety Coordinator (Highways England) 
Laura Powick – Democratic Services Adviser  

3. Purpose

3.1  At the full Council meeting held on 11 September 2019, the following 
motion, Motion 843 – Enabling Road Safety Measures, was referred to the 
Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee for consideration:  

This Council notes that: 

 road safety and traffic speeds are of significant concern to many residents

in Gloucestershire, in both urban and rural areas.

 elected county councillors have a key role to play, working with local

communities, to resolve these concerns, finding effective road safety

solutions to help pedestrians, cyclists and all road users.

However, this Council further notes that: 

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



2 

 when County Councillors request measures to reduce traffic speeds, even

when offering to put their highways local funds towards it, policy and

financial constraints mean they rarely come to fruition.

 a key obstacle in securing some traffic calming measures is the cost of

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) and the lengthy processes needed to

secure changes such as yellow lines.

Therefore this Council resolves to:

a) Ask Cabinet to review County Council policies relating to traffic calming,

including the use of physical design and vehicle activated signage, to aid

councillors in securing evidence-based road changes.

b) Write to the relevant Secretary of State to:

i) Express our serious concern that national road safety guidelines are

too restrictive and ask for the guidance to be reviewed to create a more 

enabling policy framework. 

ii) Clarify what progress has been made to simplify the TRO process.

c) Consider increasing the road safety budget for 2020-21 through the budget

setting process, which could include a ring fenced budget for each council

division.

d) Build on existing local road safety initiatives to establish “road safety

partnerships” for each of the six districts where there are none, and to

formalise the relationship between road safety partnerships and the

highways authority and county councillors.

3.2 At the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee meeting 
held on 29 October 2019, members recommended that a Cabinet Panel be 
established to consider and take forward the resolution. The minutes for the 
meeting can be accessed at: 
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=774&MI
d=9594&Ver=4 

3.3 The Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking and Libraries agreed to 
establish a cross-party Road Safety Cabinet Panel that would be time-
limited to ensure that recommendations could be agreed within the lifetime 
of the current Council. The Panel commenced its work in February 2020, 
and its ambitions were to: 

Page 72



3 
 

 Review County Council policies relating to traffic calming, including the use 
of physical design and vehicle activated signage, to aid councillors in 
securing evidence-based road changes. 

 Consider the road safety budget for 2021-22, including the suggested 
introduction of a ring fenced budget for each council division. 

 Assess how to build on existing local road safety initiatives to establish 
‘road safety partnerships’ for each of the six districts, and to formalise the 
relationship between road safety partnerships and the highways authority 
and county councillors. 

 
4. Background 

4.1  Members will note that the majority of councils operate a partnership 
approach to road safety with statutory, volunteer and charitable trusts 
working collaboratively to address road safety across the council areas. 3 
examples of successful road safety approaches from other local authority 
areas have been outlined at Appendix 1. However, it must be made clear 
that many more successful road safety partnerships are in place 
nationwide. 

4.2  Within Gloucestershire, both the County Council and the Constabulary 
have statutory responsibilities for road safety. Highways England works 
with local authorities, voluntary and charitable trusts, primarily on targeting 
the main issues on those roads for which they are responsible.  However 
they are also able to work across the road safety agenda.  

4.3  Historically, both statutory and voluntary groups have worked together 
targeting the main concerns around road safety with some very positive 
outcomes. This Panel has been charged with looking at the positives from 
history, but refreshing road safety delivery across Gloucestershire, ensuring 
all partners and potential partners deliver a strategy for road safety that has 
a vision to achieve a reduction in casualties (K&SI) on our roads.  

4.4  A clear, targeted communications strategy doesn’t currently exist. All 
parties involved in pre-panel discussions understand that reaching all the 
communities we serve is fundamental if we are going to be successful with 
any proposed refresh to collaborative working.     

5. Meeting Dates 

The Panel met on 4 occasions to consider the following presentations:  

18 February 2020 

 GFRS and Road Safety in Gloucestershire – Mark Astle, Assistant Chief 
Fire Officer 

Page 73



4 
 

 Policing and Road Safety within Gloucestershire – Martin Surl, Police and 
Crime Commissioner 
GCC and Road Safety in Gloucestershire – Colin Chick, Executive Director 
for Economy, Environment and Infrastructure/ Philip Williams, Lead 
Commissioner Community Infrastructure 

 Gloucestershire Road Safety Data – Andrew Parker-Mowbray, Road Safety 
and Transport Data Team Leader  
 

20 October 2020 
 

 GCC policies relating to traffic calming, including the use of physical design 
and vehicle-activated signage; and data relating to accidents and traffic 
calming measures – Kathryn Haworth, Lead Commissioner Highways/ 
Andrew Parker-Mowbray, Road Safety and Transport Data Team Leader/ 
Anne Johns, Assistant Engineer (Improvements) 

 Safer Driving in Gloucestershire – Gavin Roberts, Assistant Chief Fire 
Officer 
 
20 November 2020 

 
 Safe and Social Roads – Nigel Lloyd Jones, Priority Lead for Safe and 

Social Roads 
 Roads Policing and Enforcement – Paul Keasey, Det. Supt. and Director of 

Intelligence, Gloucestershire Constabulary 
 
8 December 2020 
 

 The role of Highways England in Road Safety – Beverley Hannah, Regional 
Road Safety Coordinator, Highways England 
 

6. Key Observations 
 

Gloucestershire County Council  
 

6.1  The Panel received a number of presentations from officers at 
Gloucestershire County Council, including Kath Haworth, Lead 
Commissioner Highways, and Andrew Parker-Mowbray, Road Safety and 
Transport Data Team Leader, on the Council’s statutory role regarding road 
safety.  
 

6.2  Under the Highways Act, the Council has a duty to keep the highway 
network safe. The Council follows a data led approach to ensure resources 
are prioritised where they are needed most. A collision hotspot list is 

Page 74



5 

generated annually based on the number of collisions over a three year 
period, which highlights where drivers are most at risk of a collision.  

6.3  Those with the highest risk are subject to a more detailed investigation, 
involving the Road Safety team, Highway Improvement team and the Local 
Highways Manager, to identify whether engineering measures could reduce 
future collisions. A priority assessment is then undertaken, and the 
Highways Improvement team works closely with the consultant design team 
to ensure the most appropriate solution is delivered and is cost effective. 

6.4 Each site where measures have been implemented is monitored for three 
years after to allow for comparison and to identify which measures are most 
successful to inform future decisions. Notably, high friction surfacing, 
school safety zones, and junction improvements appear to have the biggest 
impacts. 

6.5 Further information on Gloucestershire County Council’s responsibility for 
road safety can be found at Appendix 3.  

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 

6.6  The Panel received information on the road safety role of Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) from Mark Astle and Gavin Roberts, 
Assistant Chief Fire Officers.   

6.7  GFRS has a particular role in educating the community on road safety, 
alongside partners including Gloucestershire County Council. Education 
packages are largely focused on 16-24 year olds, and include a ‘What If’ 
presentation given to schools and sixth form colleges, and ‘Wrecked’, a 
presentation focused on drink and drug driving. Joint media campaigns on 
road safety are also run by GFRS and Gloucestershire Constabulary. 

6.8  Additionally, GFRS plays a key role in the Safe and Social Roads strategy, 
working alongside partners. 

6.9 During the lifetime of the Panel, further up to date information on the road 
safety role of GFRS has been received. This can be found at Appendix 4. 

Gloucestershire Police and Crime Commissioner and Constabulary 

6.10  Martin Surl, Gloucestershire Police and Crime Commissioner, and Det. 
Supt Paul Keasey, Director of Intelligence, Gloucestershire Constabulary, 
attended meetings of the Panel to discuss their roles in addressing road 
safety across the County. Det. Supt. Keasey has also held the role of the 

Page 75



6 

National Police Chiefs Council’s head of National Roads Policing 
Operations and Intelligence for the last 7 years. 

6.11  The Constabulary has two responsibilities relating to road safety: 
prevention, in collaboration with partners, and enforcement. 

6.12  It was understood that roads policing is complex. It includes dealing with 
speeding, collisions, congestion, criminals using the road network, and 
environmental issues. It was also understood that there needs to be 
improved data sharing to establish an understanding of risk, which would 
enable better strategic foresight, and on the true volume of accidents. 

6.13  Over the last few years, enforcement activities in the County have 
increased. In 2019, 31,000 speeding offences and just fewer than 1000 
seat belt offences were enforced. Almost 500 distraction offences were 
enforced last year. 

6.14  It was recognised that enforcement is not the only solution to road safety 
incidents. An environment where people should be compliant needs to be 
created.   

Safe and Social Roads 

6.15  Nigel Lloyd Jones, Priority Lead for Safe and Social Roads (S&SR), gave a 
presentation on his role, the remit of S&SR, and S&SR initiatives. 

6.16  The Panel was informed that 2021 presents a transformative new chapter 
for S&SR, based on a holistic safe system approach, which has been 
inspired by a shared vision for zero road casualties in Gloucestershire by 
2040. 

6.17  The Panel understood that behavioural change is an area that can be 
addressed now under the holistic system approach to S&SR. By focusing 
on innovative preventative awareness for safer road users, accidents can 
be prevented through behavioural change. 

6.18  This can be achieved firstly through nuanced analysis to understand the 
data and focus attention on where it needs to be. 

6.19  Secondly, this can be achieved through cause champions. There is 
currently no clear road safety brand in Gloucestershire. There is a need for 
a powerful, clear brand to present information, and to develop community 
confidence behind the brand. There is also a need for a digital portal 

Page 76



7 
 

whereby the community can access all information relating to road safety in 
one place. 

 
6.20  Thirdly, an empowered community can help to develop safer road users, 

which can be achieved through an understanding of the target market, and 
finding local organisations to become road safety ambassadors. This will 
require mentoring and funding. The community also needs to be equipped, 
through refreshed advice to schools, and town and parish councils, as well 
as equipping individuals to speak up regarding road safety concerns.  

 
6.21  Nigel Lloyd Jones proposed an alliance delivery structure to work on road 

safety in the County, which would include lead organisations relevant to the 
holistic system approach, each leading on individual work stream activities, 
and with evidence led goals and tasks. This would be coordinated by an 
alliance delivery manager, which would be funded by alliance members, 
and overseen by a strategic board made up of key partners, such as GCC. 

 
6.22  Presentations received by the Panel on the remit and ambitions of S&SR 

can be found at Appendix 5. 
 
Highways England 
 

6.23 Beverley Hannah, South West Regional Safety Coordinator, Highways 
England, provided the Panel with a presentation on her role in Highways 
England, and as to how she supports the road safety agenda across the 
South West of England.  
 

6.24 In particular, her role is to coordinate road safety activity within the region 
and to attend partnership meetings. Her aim is to support the reduction of 
collisions and casualties on our roads. Furthermore, she works to promote 
a number of Highways England initiatives and campaigns, including: Load 
security training; encouraging load security interventions; and providing 
training for officers in conjunction with the Health and Safety Executive. 
She is able to share studies and toolkits with partners in order to assist with 
interventions. 

 
7. HMICFRS observations on Road Safety 

7.1  In the recent full inspection of GFRS by HMICFRS, it was reported that: 

“The strategy for improving road safety isn’t clear.  There is no formal road 
safety partnership in Gloucestershire.  However the service does carry out 
some activities with the police and crime commissioner including a safe and 

Page 77



8 
 

social driving co-ordinator post and several programmes such as “what if” 
that targets new drivers”   

7.2  Inspectors reported that GFRS ‘requires improvement’. In Appendix 1 
examples of three other local authorities: Lincolnshire, Oxfordshire and 
Cornwall, which were all graded as ‘Good’ in their inspections in terms of 
their approach to road safety, have been detailed. 
 

8. Safe & Social Roads Strategy Group 
 

8.1 As Chair of the Road Safety Cabinet Panel, Cllr Norman was invited to 
present to the Safe and Social Roads (S&SR) Strategy Meeting on 7 
December 2020, updating them on the work of the Panel to date. It also 
provided the opportunity to establish a conversation as to how to gain 
engagement from the County residents on road safety.  
 

8.2 One of the outcomes following discussions with road safety partners at the 
S&SR Strategy meeting, was that one of the key recommendations of the 
Cabinet Panel could be to establish a ‘forum’ and ‘senate’ approach to 
partnership working, enabling residents to feed into the ‘forum’ and for the 
‘senate’ to work proactively on road safety. 

 
9. Panel Input 

 
9.1 Each panel member was asked to consider three main issues they have 

regarding road safety within their district council area, as well as broader 
Gloucestershire concerns.   
 

9.2 A number of issues have been raised by the panel members, with the main 
themes being: Speeding; Irresponsible parking (junctions/bends on housing 
estate roads); Cyclists; and Older drivers (education). Full details of the 
concerns raised by each panel member can be found at Appendix 2.  

 
9.3 Panel members recognised that the approach to road safety in 

Gloucestershire over the last few years has become disjointed and 
therefore less effective. At every meeting of the Panel, members pressed 
for a clear communications strategy and a methodology of how we can 
engage with communities across the County on road safety. 
 

10. Recommendations of the Panel 
 
The Panel has considered all the information it has been presented with 
from key partners relating to road safety across the County. The Panel has 
subsequently identified a number of recommendations to cover the themes 
of Engineering, Education, Enforcement and Engagement, in order to 

Page 78



9 

improve the approach to road safety in Gloucestershire. These 
recommendations are as follows:  

a) Through Engineering, Enforcement and Education, to significantly
reduce the number of K&SI casualties across the County.  Road safety
initiatives should always be data led. The stretch target is to achieve
zero road casualties in Gloucestershire by 2040.

b) To build a collaborative approach to road safety through the
establishment of a ‘SENATE’ where all statutory bodies responsible,
voluntary groups and charitable trusts are represented and work
together to achieve zero road casualties in Gloucestershire by 2040.

c) To establish an Engagement “forum” for residents to feed their road
safety concerns in to, either via local councillors or independently, and
to receive feedback from the “senate”.

d) For Gloucestershire County Council and others with a statutory
responsibility to commit funding to enable the appointment of a full time
officer post to lead on the collaborative approach to road safety delivery
across the County.

e) To ensure that all communications regarding any road safety messages
are planned and delivered through a single channel to strengthen the
message to Gloucestershire residents.

f) To request, as promised, an update on the review of the TRO process.
g) To encourage all parish and town councils to liaise regularly with their

county councillor and also feed into the new road safety forum regarding
local concerns around road safety.

h) To establish meetings of all county councillors within each district
authority area, supported by the officer post outlined above, with the aim
of establishing priorities for action.

i) To follow the examples of the successful partnership working that is
evident in different areas of the Country.

Cllr Dave Norman MBE - Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking and 
Libraries 

January 2021 

Page 79



10 

Appendix 1  

Examples of local authorities identified as ‘Good’ in their approach to road 
safety by HMICFRS  

Listed below are excerpts from three local authority HMICFRS Fire Inspection 
reports on road safety. These authorities have been judged to be ‘Good’ by 
HMICFRS in their approach to road safety. Full reports can be accessed at 
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/ 

Lincolnshire: 

‘The service actively promotes road safety to cut the number of people who are 
seriously injured or killed on the roads. It is an active member of the Lincolnshire 
road safety partnership, which was set up in 2000. The service has identified very 
young drivers, the elderly and motorcyclists as especially at risk. It concentrates its 
partnership work on those groups.  

The partnership provides all primary schools with road safety awareness lessons 
and offers an annual theatre production to all secondary schools. The partnership 
also offers a wide range of courses, tailored to the specific risk groups of young 
drivers, the elderly and motorcyclists. A fee is a charged for these. The service 
supports the innovative ‘2 fast 2 soon’ programme. This engages with young drivers 
at rallies and festivals. Several community events held at fire stations focus on road 
safety. Station-based teams regularly support the promotion and hosting of these 
events. The service’s website covers road safety thoroughly and provides clear and 
concise information to the community.’ 

Oxfordshire: 

‘Oxfordshire FRS is responsible for providing road safety information and training on 
behalf of the county council. The service is prioritising four particularly vulnerable 
groups until 2022. These are: 

 motorcyclists, particularly those aged 34–55;
 cyclists;
 pedestrians; and
 young drivers aged 17–24.

The service works with partner organisations and with a range of audiences to 
implement its road safety programme. The cycling proficiency scheme develops road 
safety awareness and safe riding skills in younger cyclists. Biker Down is a national 
initiative run by bikers for bikers. It is aimed at riders but is also suitable for 
passengers. The workshop gives bikers the skills to keep themselves safe, give 
specific first aid and protect an injured motorcyclist at the scene of a crash. 

As a member of the Thames Valley Road Safety Forum, the service helps promote 
and improve road safety. Recent campaigns included cycling safety, drink and drugs 
awareness and use of seatbelts. In partnership with the other emergency services 
across Thames Valley, the service will run the annual Safe Drive Stay Alive initiative 

Page 80



11 

in Oxfordshire with over 5,000 young drivers. The forum, along with the service, 
evaluates initiatives and uses marketing analysis to target specific audiences.’ 

Cornwall: 

‘Road traffic collisions are presently the highest risk within the service’s risk-based 
evidence profile. The service’s analysis shows that 72 percent of deaths and injuries 
from road traffic collisions are from groups identified as vulnerable. This includes 
motorcyclists, older drivers, pedestrians, cyclists and young drivers. The service is 
currently leading a review of Cornwall’s road casualty reduction strategy. 

The service has developed several projects to promote road safety. For example, 
‘Where You Look Is Where You Go’ is a campaign aimed at reducing motorcycle 
injuries that result from excessive speed on bends. ‘Distraction’ workshops are 
aimed at year-seven students about pedestrian and cycle safety. The service runs 
many of the projects with the support of partner organisations. 

Where analysis indicates high incidence and risk, local stations are expected to 
conduct targeted activities with local communities. We found evidence that local 
stations were doing this work.’ 

Page 81



12 
 

Appendix 2  

1. Top three road safety concerns raised by the Road Safety Cabinet Panel 
members 

Cllr Steve Robinson:  

a) Speeding  
b) Parking close to junctions, police not interested. 
c) Inspection of the highway surface, residents find it difficult to understand when 

you tell them it’s about underneath the cracking up tarmac, they see it 
dangerous.  

Cllr John Cordwell: 

a) Speeding, especially ignoring 20mph limits 
b) More safe crossing points across roads. 
c) Irresponsible parking including pavement parking  

Cllr Eva Ward: 

a) Speeding and enforcement (questions re lack of regular police presence and 
action; prevention of speeding) 

b) Traffic calming (questions are why can’t we have more VASs, more speed 
bumps, chicanes, signage, crossings) 

c) Cycling - this issue is growing hugely since Covid (the questions concern safe 
cycling provision and road surfaces/potholes) 

Cllr Terry Hale: 

a) Speeding  
b) Parking  
c) TROs 
d) Yellow lines 
e) Tractors on roads in rural areas 

Cllr John Payne:  

a) A review of traffic volumes and their impact on road safety as a consequence 
of large housing developments. 

b) Effective measures to control vehicle speed in urban areas. 
c) Improved infrastructure for walking and cycling. 

Cllr Dave Norman MBE: 

a) Speeding 
b) Dangerous parking in residential areas 
c) Older drivers who need update skilling (education) 

Page 82



13 

2. Road Safety Cabinet Panel member proposals for report recommendations

Cllr Steve Robinson:

 Road safety is disjointed at present - We need to establish a road safety hub,
similar to the MASH.  This would be funded by GCC and the Police and made
up of Police, Fire & Rescue and Highways.  They would feed in regularly to a
meeting of Police, Fire & Rescue, Highways, TRO Dept and Highways Design
Team.

 All building developments carried out in the county need to be looked at by the
Hub to consider road safety and how improvements could be made with funds
from the developers.

 A more positive working relationship needs to be in place between Road
Safety Team and Districts and Parishes.  Parishes have local knowledge
which would be beneficial.

 Is there a need for more staff in the TRO Department so that schemes can be
processed much more quickly?

Cllr John Cordwell: 

My main concern is to carry out the third reason for setting up the panel to: 

 assess how to build on existing local road safety initiatives to establish ‘road
safety partnerships’ for each of the six districts, and to formalise the
relationship between road safety partnerships and the highways authority and
county councillors.

As I have mentioned the Stroud Road Safety Liaison Group was one of six set
up many years ago by the County Council which until recent years was
clerked by a GCC officer and its work led by a GCC road safety officer. They
had/have two county councillors on each, one of whom chaired the group. I
have a copy of the terms of reference. The Stroud one has continued to meet
(except in the current Covid-19 situation).  It is looking forward to action on the
point above.

I think one still exists in the Forest of Dean, although mainly concerned with
the A48.

Some many years ago now, the minutes of these groups were tabled for
members of GCC’s then Planning and Transportation Committee at its
meetings.

The main purposes of these groups, which involve a wide range of road user
groups, has been to educate the public and to advise Gloucestershire County
Council of the Groups’ views on the County Council’s Road Safety Plan. They
specifically did not get involved in “parochial” issues which it saw as matters

Page 83



14 

that should be referred directly by those interested to their local county 
councillor or to a local GH officer.   

I would like to see these road safety liaison groups or something similar re-
established where necessary and reinvigorated through leadership from an officer, 
either a GCC officer or perhaps someone from the police.  Their remits should be 
largely standardised across the county with occasional joint meetings. (There used 
to be an annual meeting for all six.)    

A now defunct recent local initiative in the Stroud DC area specifically 
involved parish councils on a subscription basis on issues such as TROs. I 
am unsure whether it is necessary to reinvent this role if better 
communications can be established between the County Council and parish 
councils. 

The second reason for setting up the panel was to: 

 consider the road safety budget for 2021-22, including the suggested
introduction of a ring-fenced budget for each council division.

I am not keen on the suggestion of a ring-fenced budget for each council division. To 
an extent this already exists through Highways Local.  I think it would be better if 
done over a wider area such as meetings between all the county councillors within a 
district council area where priorities for action could be established.  This has 
similarities to the divisional estimates meetings that used to exist where priorities 
were discussed.   

Page 84



15 

Appendix 3 

Further information received by the Panel on GCC’s road safety role: 

Road safety is a very important responsibility within Economy, Environment and 
Infrastructure – collectively this area of GCC covers highways/engineering, road 
safety data, active travel, ThinkTravel, and community engagement.  Whilst the 
biggest improvements in road safety have come from vehicle design regulations, e.g. 
active and passive protection, and that this will further improve with the introduction 
of mandatory ISA speed limiting technology, there is more that can be done to invest 
in safety on our highway network as collision hotspots continue to be identified and 
addressed through an evidenced led accident remedial programme.  

There is already a good foundation to work from, with close liaison with the police on 
investigating collisions and using this data to focus on hot spots in our capital 
programme.  Local Highway Managers have established working relationships with 
parish and town councils across the county and road safety continues to be an 
important strand of this work.  

It is vital that all road safety work is data-led using a strong evidence base to support 
not only engineering interventions but all facets of accident reduction including 
enforcement, education, training, publicity or encouragement thereby ensuring that 
all the resources available are used to maximum effect in a co-ordinated way. 
Equally, it should not be forgotten that it is imperative that all new proposals that 
affect the highway in any way go through a full safety audit process to ensure that all 
potential hazards and risks are engineered out at the design stage. 

It is therefore clear that the County Council has a primary role in making our roads 
safer for the travelling public and, as ever, we are  keen to work effectively with 
partners to achieve sustained improvements in road safety over the long term. 

Page 85



16 

Appendix 4: 

Further information received by the Panel on the road safety role of GFRS: 

It is argued that changing behaviours is key to making significant improvement to 
road safety and the way that people use our roads. One of the highlighted ways to 
achieving behavioural change is through preventative education, an area that the 
Fire and Rescue Service has been involved with for many years now, covering areas 
such as fire safety, water safety including boat safety, winter safety for elderly people 
and of course road safety. 

Using our highly skilled flexible workforce, road safety education initiatives have 
been delivered with partners, out of our SkillZone facility and in locations across 
Gloucestershire, including a large number of schools. It is important to state that we 
have only been able to achieve this by close collaboration with stakeholders and by 
making use of our wholetime and on-call firefighters. Working with our partners, the 
Fire and Rescue Service has also started to explore how technology, such as virtual 
reality, can be used to enhance the educational experience, as it is imperative we 
understand our audience and the way they communicate.  

The path however has not always been easy, as road safety in particular has a wide 
shared responsibility at a national, regional and local level, with a complex multi-
sectoral context that at times can lead to competing interests. Still, this multi-sectoral 
context has also proven to be our strength, as it has delivered opportunities for a 
more holistic system wide approach, and focused partnership initiatives with strong 
community outcomes at their heart.   

Therefore, moving forward, it is felt with robust governance through a county wide 
collaboration board, strong ownership, leadership and the right political will, the Fire 
and Rescue Service sees itself as one of a core group of services / agencies that 
working together can improve and enhance the safety of road users in 
Gloucestershire. 

Page 86



 SAFE & SOCIAL ROADS 

    Presentation to   

GCC Road Safety Cabinet 

on  

Priority Lead role, remit,  

     & S&SR initiatives     

   20.11.20 

Appendix 5

P
age 87



2021: Transformative new chapter    

  Integrated alliance     Inspired by a shared vision  

•  Gloucestershire 

• VISION ZERO
• Zero road casualties by 2040

•   50% reduction by 2030 

2 

P
age 88



         
  
             

Marketing comms career: Auto specialism          

P
age 89



         
  
             

Victim testimony & road safety campaigner          

P
age 90



Discovery conversations                          

• Gavin Roberts 
    ACFO GCC 
 
• Andrew Parker-Mowbray  
    Road Safety & Transport Data  
    Team Leader 
 
• Ruth Griffiths 
    GCC Communications Team   
    
• Richard Lloyd  
   Senior Improvements Engineer 
 
• Dr David Land  
    Principal Transport Planner 
 
• Ollie Hazel  
    Cycling Coordinator  
   
 

 
   

5 

GCC colleagues    

60+ 

P
age 91



        Slight  

        -10%  

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

26 27 20 28 20 

228 253 
294 

254 
297 

892 888 

796 

690 

806 

1146 1168 
1110 

977 

1123 

              Serious  

               +30%   

                        Fatal 

                      - 23%   

Total   

-2%   

KSI&SI figures: Flatlined + 2020 concerns                        

P
age 92



 Enriched national research   

• Commissioned by Det Superintendent  
   Paul Keasey, NRPOII  
  

• Outcomes: 
  - Accident reports often incomplete 
    narrative*  
  - Do not  reveal core behavioural 
    choices that led to the accident  
 
 
• Highlighted in GCC Road Casualty Risk 

    profile             

KSI&SI causal analysis: Flawed                         

P
age 93



Fatality  

Serious  

Slight  

Property  

Unreported  

• Unreported accidents cost  
   adds 116% to cost  
   of reported accidents 
   
• Total cost of UK road  
   accidents  £35.3 bn  
               
                
 
 
 
 
               
                       

 

£2.13m 

£0.24m 

£0.025m 

£0.02m 

+116% 

  International Transport Forum Road Safety 

         Annual Report 2019*, United Kingdom       

Cost: Underestimated                        

P
age 94



Fatalities     20 

Serious       297 

Slight         806   

£350.15m* 

Cost of KSI 

& non-fatal  

not reported  

   

  International Transport Forum Road Safety 

         Annual Report 2019*, United Kingdom       

1,123 EMOTIONAL  

IMPACT 

 2019 

15’ -19’ 

£1.595bn 

Cost: Underestimated                        

P
age 95



Cost of KSI 

& non-fatal  

not reported  

   

 2019 

Local activity: Unclear                        

P
age 96



Insight: Key conversation outcomes                          

“There seems to be some sort of 
social acceptance that people 
will die on our roads.  
 
If the same number were 
murdered the community would 
be in uproar.”   

 
“If we carry on what we are 

doing…. nothing will 
change.” 

   
 

 
   

11 

60+ 

P
age 97



S&S Plan: Dashboard                         
                          Remit: Deliver ‘SAFE & SOCIAL ROADS’ PLAN  SAFE 

 
SECURE  SOCIAL  

1. People should be able to move around our communities IN SAFETY & with as much 

    ease & convenience as possible 

2. The Constabulary will ENFORCE THE LAW  when necessary, but we will all  work to 

    REDUCE OFFENDING & ANTI SOCIAL DRIVING  

3. The Constabulary will LISTEN TO COMMUNITIES & provide proportionate response 

    to local road safety concerns  

 

4. The Constabulary will explore options around WORKING WITH HIGHWAYS ENGLAND  

   

5. The Constabulary & OPCC will work with partners to promote the benefits 

   of safe & social roads in RESPECTING ROAD USERS & REDUCING POLLUTION   

6. The Constabulary will develop LOCALISED INTERVENTIONS WITH PARTNERS    

    alongside national campaigns  

7. The Constabulary will DEVELOP INTERVENTIONS WITH MOST AT RIsK GROUPS   

    on the roads  

 

 

8. OPCC & Constabulary will work with others to make it a PLEASANT EXPERIENCE 

    TO TRAVEL around the county & explore the beauty & tranquillity of Gloucestershire   

P
age 98



 

CONSTRUCTIVE 
DISRUPTOR  

 

SUPPORTIVE 
ENABLER 

 

FOCUSING 
PATHFINDER  

Role                              

P
age 99



Insight: Focus on behavioural change 

• Safer Roads: Time & funding

• Safe Speeds: Enforcing out of
problem not feasible

• Safe Vehicles: Game changing
technology decades away

• Post Crash Care: Stretched to limits

     SAFE ROAD USERS:  
      Where we can focus on NOW with   
      INNOVATIVE preventive awareness & 
      education     

14 

P
age 100



     Key Initiatives: Highlights                      

Nuanced 
Analysis   

Cause  
Champions    

Empowered 
Community     

THE POWER  

OF 1+1=3    

   

ROAD SAFETY  

FRONT-OF-MIND  

    

   

FOCUS ATTENTION   

ON WHERE IT NEEDS  

TO BE   

P
age 101



 

• Community insight: 

• Identify disenfranchised 

   communities  

• Sharing best practice    

• Mobilising action  

 

• Predictive intelligence:  

• More effective & efficient  

   roads policing 

• Enriched data to target  

   & inform awareness  

   /education campaigns 

    

ACTVITIES  OUTCOMES  

    Nuanced Analysis: Research                       

Town & 
Parish 

Council 
Survey  

Project 
Galileo 

informed 
Police STRA  

Annual 
Road 

Casualty 
Risk Profile 

& activities    

OPCC 

GAPTC  
GC  GCC  

 SAFE SYSTEM  

P
age 102



     Key Strategies                   

Nuanced 
Analysis   

Cause  
Champions    

Empowered 
Community     

THE POWER  

OF 1+1=3    

   

ROAD SAFETY  

FRONT-OF-MIND  

  COMMUNITY DEBATE   

   

FOCUS ATTENTION   

ON WHERE IT NEEDS  

TO BE   

P
age 103



    Cause Champions: Establish coherent brand                      

Gloucestershire  

P
age 104



  

    Cause Champions: Annual brand campaign                       

The People behind the Brand  

P
age 105



  
• Hosted by OPCC website 

• ‘Safe System’ model      

• Links to advice on    

   : Safe Roads 

   : Safe Speeds  

   : Safe Vehicles   

   : Safe & Social Road Users 

   : Post-crash care    

 

    Cause Champions: Establish one-stop portal                        

P
age 106



‘SPECIALS’ AWARNESS ACTIVITIES  
    

 

RE-ENERGISED POLICE PRESENCE  

 

    Cause Champions: High viz police presence                         

Once socially distancing viable  

P
age 107



    Key Strategies                    

Nuanced 
Analysis   

Cause  
Champions    

Empowered 
Community     

THE POWER  

OF 1+1=3    

   

ROAD SAFETY  

FRONT-OF-MIND  

  COMMUNITY DEBATE   

   

FOCUS ATTENTION   

ON WHERE IT NEEDS  

TO BE   

P
age 108



PEDESTRIANS/
RAMBLERS    RUNNERS   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HORSE 
RIDERS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CYCLISTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MOTOR 
CYCLISTS  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

PRE & 
YOUNG 
DRIVERS  

  
 
 
 

OLDER 
DRIVERS 

& 
PASSENGERS   

 

  

FAMILY   
DRIVERS   

BUSINESS 
DRIVERS  

23 

    Empowered Community                       

MENTOR, FUND & EQUIP         

P
age 109



 TOWN & PARISH COUNCILS &  SCHOOLS      

  
•  Refreshed advice to Town & 
    Parish Councils on how to 
    develop & implement local 
    ‘Safe System’ schemes   
       
    COVID robust awareness & 
    education ONLINE activities      

 
 

     

   
 

    

COMMUNITY TOOLKIT    
        

   Parking buddies 
 Gloucestershire Community 
    ANPR Road Safety Group 
 Dashcam usage 
 Community speed watch  
 Paws on Patrol 
 Location apps (what3words) 

 

• Supported by: 
   Community alerts  
   NPT & Community PCSOs 
 Crimestoppers 
 Neighbourhood Watch   

 

    Empowered Community: Equipped to ACT                       

P
age 110



    Empowered Community: Equipped to SPEAK UP                                

P
age 111



 

 ! COVID  

 ! Distrust of public transport 

 ! Internet shopping white vans       

 ! Increase in walking, cycling,  

   e-bikes, e-scooters 

 ! Booming pensioner pop  

 ! Mainstream electric &  

   semi-autonomous vehicles 

 ! Greta Thunberg factor 

 ! Rural road user ‘newbies’ 

 

   Future proofing                          

P
age 112



Alliance delivery 
Manager 

Funded by 
alliance members   

STRATEGIC 
BOARD 

GCC, GC, 
OPCC  

Alliance delivery structure & activities                              

27 

• LEAD organisations  

    for each component 

 

• Leading individual  

    workstream activities 

 

• Each with evidence-led  

    goals, tasks & KPIs     

P
age 113



     How can you support?                     

28 

P
age 114



 

• Adoption alliance ‘Safe System’& VISION ZERO 
 

• Part funding of Alliance delivery manager  
 

• Establish new road safety brand        
 

• Join PCC & Chief Constable & to support this 
briefing to S&SR Strategy Group 7th December    
 

• Review, resource allocations & funding of local 
initiatives 
 

   
 

 
   

29 

Your support is requested        

2021: A Transformative new chapter                              

P
age 115



     SAFE & SOCIAL ROADS     
  

     Presentation to   

GCC Road Safety Cabinet  

on  

Priority Lead role, remit,  

                  & S&SR initiatives         

 

               Status @ 19.11.20 

 

P
age 116



Summary input to 

Strategy Group Meeting 

02.12.20  

Nigel Lloyd-Jones

Priority Lead ‘Safe and Social Roads’ 

02.01.21          

P
age 117



• Priority Lead role (PL) is a voluntary position to support the delivery of the Police Crime Commissioner’s (PCC) plan 
by listening to the community and working with statutory, commercial and voluntary sector partners to provide 
effective and measurable solutions.   

• PL is resource rich in passion and knowledge, but limited in personnel and budget resource. 

• Since PL engagement on 1st July he has been involved in a parallel activity to the GCC Road Safety Cabinet. This 
has involved over 70 interviews with partner and community representatives. 

• Road casualty figures: Flatlined for many years. In ‘20 Glos considered an ‘outlier’ with no reduction in KSIs, despite 
reduction in traffic volumes. 

• Accident analytics: Causation often flawed. 

• Cost: Underestimated, as no accounting for unreported accidents. 

• Local road safety activities: No overall picture on what activity is taking place and its’ effectiveness. 

• Community: Often feel unheard and/or bogged down by labyrinth process. APCC survey: 24% feel unsafe or very 
unsafe on Glos roads.  

• Road safety brand: Non existent. 

• Road safety information for community: Often obscure. 

• Current Strategy Group: Blurred LEAD roles and limited accountability.  

• Consistent interviewee feedback: “ If we carry on what we are doing nothing will change.”

Context        

ROLE 

FINDINGS

P
age 118



Step 1: Forum adopts Safe System framework                           

3

LEAD ROLES   

• Safe Roads : GCC 

• Safe Speeds: GC 

• Safe Road Users: OPCC 

• Post-Crash Care: Fire 

• Safe Vehicles: GC  

METHODOLOGY 

• LEAD for each element 

• Leading individual workstream

activities

• Mutual support depending on 

expertise & resource 

Pros 

• International/ national best 

practice

• Holistic, transparent    

• Clarity of LEAD responsibilities  

• Minimises duplication of effort

• Structured accountability 

Cons  

• Potential in-balance of resource 

available  

P
age 119



PEDESTRIANS/
RAMBLERS RUNNERS HORSE 

RIDERS 
CYCLISTS MOTOR

CYCLISTS

PRE & 
YOUNG 
DRIVERS 

OLDER 
DRIVERS

& 
PASSENGERS  

FAMILY   
DRIVERS  

BUSINESS 
DRIVERS 

4

Builds on existing PCC Fund activity to recruit, mentor, fund ambassador organisations. 

Safe Road User: OPCC Lead           

P
age 120



DELIVERY MANAGER  

Co-funded 

Coordinator

Best practice 
champion      

SAFER 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

5

Step 2: Forum oversight by Safer Gloucestershire                     

S&SR FORUM  
DELIVERY MANAGER 

Pros 

• Safer Gloucestershire 

provides further  

community ‘voice’      

• Greater governance 

accountability of Forum

• Dedicated, full time focus 

of Delivery Manager    

Cons  
• Cost, timing of Delivery 

Manager recruitment 

• Additional workload on 

Forum members    

P
age 121



Step 3: United by shared Vision                       

6

Pros 
• International & national best practice

• Raises public & media awareness

• Provides powerful road safety brand 
• Unifies stakeholders 

• Focuses & prioritises actions 

• Measures progress 

• Increases accountability

• SAVE LIVES 

Cons  
• Increased workload & cost  

P
age 122



2021: Transformative New Chapter                

Integrated Forum      Shared Goal   

• Gloucestershire 

• VISION ZERO
• Zero road casualties by 2040

• 50% reduction by 2030

• 25% reduction by 2025   

7

P
age 123



SAFE & SOCIAL ROADS    

Back Up Content                             

02.01.21

P
age 124



Fatality 

Serious 

Slight 

Property 

Unreported 

• Unreported accidents cost 
adds 116% to cost 
of reported accidents

• Total cost of UK road 
accidents £35.3 bn 

£2.13m

£0.24m

£0.025m

£0.02m

+116%

International Transport Forum Road Safety

Annual Report 2019*, United Kingdom      

Cost: Underestimated     

P
age 125



Fatalities     20

Serious       297

Slight         806  

£350.15m*

Cost of KSI

& non-fatal 

not reported 

International Transport Forum Road Safety

Annual Report 2019*, United Kingdom      

1,123 EMOTIONAL 

IMPACT

2019

15’ -19’

£1.595bn

Cost: Underestimated     

P
age 126



Slight 

-10%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

26 27 20 28 20

228 253
294

254
297

892 888

796

690

806

1146 1168
1110

977

1123

Serious 

+30%  

Fatal

- 23%  

Total  

-2%  

KSI&SI figures: Flatlined + 2020 concerns          

P
age 127



PCC ‘Safe & Social Roads’ Plan: Summary            

1. People should be able to move around our communities IN SAFETY & with as much ease &

convenience as possible

2. The Constabulary will ENFORCE THE LAW  when necessary, but we will all  work to REDUCE

OFFENDING & ANTI SOCIAL DRIVING 

3. The Constabulary will LISTEN TO COMMUNITIES & provide proportionate response to local road safety

concerns 

4. The Constabulary will explore options around WORKING WITH HIGHWAYS ENGLAND 

5. The Constabulary & OPCC will work with partners to promote the benefits of safe & social roads in

RESPECTING ROAD USERS & REDUCING POLLUTION  

6. The Constabulary will develop LOCALISED INTERVENTIONS WITH PARTNERS alongside national

campaigns 

7. The Constabulary will DEVELOP INTERVENTIONS WITH MOST AT RISK GROUPS  on the roads 

8. OPCC & Constabulary will work with others to make it a PLEASANT EXPERIENCE TO TRAVEL around the 

county & explore the beauty & tranquillity of Gloucestershire  

P
age 128



Input to 

GCC Road Safety Cabinet 

on role of OPCC in     

Revitalised ‘Safe & Social Roads’ Forum  

Nigel Lloyd-Jones

Priority Lead ‘Safe and Social Roads’

OPCC 

04.01.21          

P
age 129



This report follows on from recommendations made by Nigel Lloyd-Jones, Priority Lead for 

‘Safe and Social Roads, OPCC at a Strategy Group meeting on 7.12.20 for the future 

performance framework and vision for a revitalised Forum.  

In summary these were the adoption of international and national best practice in the form 

of : 

1. ‘Safe System’ performance framework  

This provides clear Lead roles for each ‘Safe System’ element, with each Lead directing 

measurable workstream activities, supported by Forum members depending on their 

expertise and resource.

The benefits of this framework are a holistic, transparent approach with accountable Lead 

responsibilities, a more nimble and timely process, minimising duplication of effort.     

2. Commitment to VISON ZERO

This provides a powerful, high visibility, brand with which all Forum members can unite to 

prioritise activities and measure progress. The brand will significantly raise community safe 

and social roads awareness. 

3. With a governance overview of ‘Safer Gloucestershire’

This creates further opportunities for community input and engagement through ‘Safer 

Gloucestershire ’ related organisations.  

This report now goes on to explore the OPCC role in this Forum with Lead responsibility for 

the ‘Safe Road User’ element.    

04 January 2021

Introduction
GCC GC

OPCC

FIRE

GCP
age 130



The purpose of this element will be:

1. In the drive to VISION ZERO to champion the focus on the most vulnerable road user 

groups (RUG). 

2. To track and report on the evolving, RUG market segmentation and issues.       

3. By engagement with RUG representatives to provide a further conduit through which 

the community can express their views. 

4. Manging community complaints through existing OPCC procedures.       

5. With county, national and international research to heighten the knowledge and 

expertise of the Forum in developing preventive awareness and enforcement activities. 

6. From the above support GC in national and local campaigns.   

7. To recruit, fund, and mentor RUG organisations, forming a network to mutually support 

each other in ongoing preventative awareness activities. 

8. To unify RUG organisation behind VISON ZERO, including an annual conference at the 

Sabrina Centre and Force Open Day. 

9. To provide a central ‘Safe & Social Roads’ information resource to the community. 

10. To be a pathfinder for future proofing strategies to address incoming RUG issues.      

04 January 2021

Safe Road User: OPCC Lead  Pedestrians

Runners 

Horse Riders

Cyclists 

Micro mobility 

Motorcyclists 

Young Drivers

Older Drivers

Family Drivers 

Business User 

P
age 131



PROS 

1. Good fit with existing PCC Plan, S&SR Priority Lead work profile, and 

purpose of PCC Fund.  

2. S&SR Priority Lead able to gather further community input from other 

OPCC Priority Leads. 

3. Many OPCC community relationships and intelligence gathering 

processes already in place through RUG organisations and GC.    

3. Majority of activities set out in Lead role already activated by S&SR 

Priority Lead.  

CONS  

1. Limited personnel resource and budget.

2. Timescale to progress initiatives.  

The above CONS can be mitigated by support from Forum partners.    

04 January 2021

Safe Road User: OPCC Lead  Pedestrians

Runners 

Horse Riders

Cyclists 

Micro mobility 

Motorcyclists 

Young Drivers

Older Drivers

Family Drivers 

Business User 

What
if?

P
age 132



PCC ‘Safe & Social Roads’ Plan: Summary            

1. People should be able to move around our communities IN SAFETY & with as much ease &

convenience as possible

2. The Constabulary will ENFORCE THE LAW  when necessary, but we will all  work to REDUCE

OFFENDING & ANTI SOCIAL DRIVING 

3. The Constabulary will LISTEN TO COMMUNITIES & provide proportionate response to local road safety

concerns 

4. The Constabulary will explore options around WORKING WITH HIGHWAYS ENGLAND 

5. The Constabulary & OPCC will work with partners to promote the benefits of safe & social roads in

RESPECTING ROAD USERS & REDUCING POLLUTION  

6. The Constabulary will develop LOCALISED INTERVENTIONS WITH PARTNERS alongside national

campaigns 

7. The Constabulary will DEVELOP INTERVENTIONS WITH MOST AT RISK GROUPS  on the roads 

8. OPCC & Constabulary will work with others to make it a PLEASANT EXPERIENCE TO TRAVEL around the 

county & explore the beauty & tranquillity of Gloucestershire  

P
age 133



Input to 

GCC Road Safety Cabinet 

of role of OPCC in     

Revitalised ‘Safe & Social Roads’ Forum  

Nigel Lloyd-Jones

Priority Lead ‘Safe and Social Roads’ 

04.01.21          

P
age 134


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Response to COVID-19 (Adult Social Care and Public Health)
	Item 4 (Appendix) - Integrated Commissioning Bronze VP Cell Covid Response Overview 11.01.21.._

	7 Public Health Report
	8 Adult Social Care Report
	9 Chief Fire Officer Report
	10 Road Safety Cabinet Panel
	Road Safety Cabinet Panel Report - Final
	Appendix 5 S&SR Presentation 1
	Appendix 5 S&SR Presentation 2
	Appendix 5 S&SR Presentation 3


